ABInBev

Annual Report
2020




Management report

Anheuser-Busch InBev is a publicly traded company (Euronext: ABI) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary listings on the Mexico
(MEXBOL: ANB) and South Africa (JSE: ANH) stock exchanges and with American Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: BUD). Our Dream is to bring people together for a better world. Beer, the original social network, has been bringing people
together for thousands of years. We are committed to building great brands that stand the test of time and to brewing the best beers using
the finest natural ingredients. Our diverse portfolio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella
Artois®;, mul-<c ount ry brands Bec k 6e®iand MidhelebgUitra®; and Incal charhpiofisfsuch as Aguila®, Antarctica®,
Bud Light®, Brahma®, Cass®, Castle®, Castle Lite®, Cristal®, Harbin®, Jupiler®, Modelo Especial®, Quilmes®, Victoria®, Sedrin® and
Skol®. Our brewing heritage dates back more than 600 years, spanning continents and generations. From our European roots at the Den
Hoorn brewery in Leuven, Belgium. To the pioneering spirit of the Anheuser & Co brewery in St. Louis, US. To the creation of the Castle
Brewery in South Africa during the Johannesburg gold rush. To Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified with a
balanced exposure to developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of approximately 164 000 employees
based in nearly 50 countries worldwide. For 2020, our reported revenue was 46.9 billion US dollar (excluding joint ventures and
associates).

The following management report should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial statements.

In the rest of this document we refer to Anheuser-Bus ch | nBev afst hieA Bc d mpBaernvyog, fiweo, fAuso

Recent event s

On 31 December 2020, we completed the issuance of a 49.9% minority stake in our US-based metal container operations to Apollo Global
Management , I n met pr¢céeAspob3.0lbidli@n )USH. ©his transaction allowed us to create additional shareholder value by
optimizing the business at an attractive price and generate proceeds to repay debt, in line with our deleveraging commitments. We retained
operational control of our US-based metal container operations. The transaction was reported in the equity statement.

On 1 June 2020, we completed the previously announced s alteAsahf
Group Holdings,Lt d ( AAsahi 0). The 16bibiom AUdDdntenteypnise vatue. Asaparioiethds transaction, we granted Asahi
rights to commerecialize the portfolio of our global and international brands in Australia. Substantially all of the 10.8 billion US dollar net
proceeds from the divestiture of the Australian business were used by the company to pay down debt. The results of the Australian
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operations were accounted for as discontinued operations (Aprofit f

Selected financial figures

To facilitate the understanding of our underlying performance, the comments in this management report, unless otherwise indicated, are
based on organic and normalized number s. fi Qingghe mpact®df cimegasinscurterities
on translation of foreign operations, and scopes. Scopes represent the impact of acquisitions and divestitures, the start-up or termination
of activities or the transfer of activities between segments, curtailment gains and losses and year-over-year changes in accounting
estimates and other assumptions that management does not consider part of the underlying performance of the business.

Effective 30 September 2019, following the announcement on 19 July 2019 of the agreement to divest CUB to Asahi, we classified the
assets and liabilities associated with the Australian operations as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. In addition, since the results of the Australian
operations represented a separate major line of business, these were accounted for as discontinued operations as required by IFRS 5
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and presented in a separate line in the consolidated i ncome statement ydidpropetatfirmmsod)i scpnt o n 3

Consequently, the 2019 consolidated results have been restated as if the classification had been applied as of 1 January 2019 to exclude
the results of the Australian operations.

Accordingly, the profit, cash flow and balance sheet are presented as reported in 2019, adjusted to reflect the classification of CUB as

di scontinued operations. This presentation is r ef eundetlydngpedornsasce 12019 r

and organic growth figures do not reflect the results of the Australian operations.

The tables in this management report provide the segment information per region for the period ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 in
the format up to Normalized EBIT level that is used by management to monitor performance.

Whenever wused in this report, the term finormalizedd r ef egatejbefore
non-recurring items and discontinued operations. Non-recurring items are either income or expenses which do not occur regularly as part
of the normal activities of the company. They are presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying
sustainable performance of the company due to their size or nature. Normalized measures are additional measures used by management
and should not replace the measures determined in accordance
should be used in conjunction with the most directly comparable IFRS measures.
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The tables below set out the components of our operating income and operating expenses, as well as the key cash flow figures.

Million US dollar

Revenue? 46 881 100% 52 329 100%
Cost of sales (19 634) 42% (20 362) 39%
Gross profit 27 247 58% 31967 61%
SG&A (15 368) 33% (16 421) 31%
Other operating income/(expenses) 845 2% 875 2%
Normalized profit from operations (Normalized EBIT) 12 723 27% 16 421 31%
Non-recurring items (3 103) 7% (323) 1%
Profit from operations (EBIT) 9620 21% 16 098 31%
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 4 598 10% 4 657 9%
Non-recurring impairment 2733 6% - 0%
Normalized EBITDA 17 321 37% 21078 40%
EBITDA 16 951 36% 20 755 40%
Normalized profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 3807 8% 8 086 15%
Profit from continuing operations attributable ® o
to equity holders of AB InBev = L 8748 1%
Prof_lt from discontinued operations attributable to 2055 2% 424 1%
equity holders of AB InBev

Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 1405 3% 9171 18%

1 Turnover less excise taxes. In many jurisdictions, excise taxes make up a large proportion of the cost of beer chargedtothec ompany 6s cust omer s.
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Million US dollar 2020 20191

Operating activities

Profit from continuing operations 147 9 990
Interest, taxes and non-cash items included in profit 17 024 11 029
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of provisions 17 171 21019
Change in working capital 592 (5)
Pension contributions and use of provisions (616) (715)
Interest and taxes (paid)/received (6 391) (7 063)
Dividends received 51 160
Cash flow from operating activities on Australia discontinued operations 84 640
Cash flow from operating activities 10 891 14 036

Investing activities

Net capex (3 687) (4 854)
Acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired/disposed of (510) (252)
Net proceeds from sale/(acquisition) of other assets (292) 33
Proceeds from Australia divestiture 10 838 219
Cash flow from investing activities on Australia discontinued operations (13) (77)
Cash flow from investing activities 6 336 (4 931)

Financing activities

Dividends paid (1 800) (5 015)
Net (payments on)/proceeds from borrowings (8 294) (8 008)
Payment of lease liabilities (461) (441)
Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC - 5575
Sale/(purchase) of non-controlling interests and other 2 086 (842)
Cash flow from financing activities on Australia discontinued operations (6) (24)
Cash flow from financing activities (8 475) (8 755)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8 752 350

1 The consolidated statement of cash flows for 2019 has been restated to include operating, investing and financing activities from discontinued operations
separately in the cashflow statement. In addition, the 2019 cash flow from investing activities has been restated to reflect reclassification of the cash flow
hedges in relation to the Australia divestiture reported in the financing activities in 2019 and recycled to profit or loss upon the completion of the transaction.



Financi al perf or mance

The tables in this management report provide the segment information per region for the period ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 in
the format down to Normalized EBIT level that is used by management to monitor performance. To facilitate the understanding of our
underlying performance, we are presenting in this management report the 2019 restated consolidated volumes and results up to
Normalized EBIT. As such, these financials are included in the organic growth calculation. The profit, cash flow and balance sheet are
presented as reported in 2019, adjusted to reflect the classification of the Australian business as discontinued operations.

We are presenting our results under five regions: North America, Middle Americas, South America, EMEA and Asia Pacific.

The tables below provide a summary of our performance for the period ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 (in million US dollar, except
volumes in thousand hectoliters) and the related comments are based on organic numbers.

Currency Organic Organic
AB INBEV WORLDWIDE Scope translation growth growth %
Volumes 561 427 1170 - (31 954) 530 644 (5.7)%
Revenue 52 329 (81) (3 410) (1 957) 46 881 (3.7)%
Cost of sales (20 362) (121) 1488 (640) (19 634) (3.1)%
Gross profit 31967 (202) (1922) (2 596) 27 247 (8.2)%
SG&A (16 421) 26 1008 19 (15 368) 0.1%
Other operating income/(expenses) 875 407 (36) (402) 845 (46.2)%
Normalized EBIT 16 421 231 (950) (2 980) 12 723 (18.3)%
Normalized EBITDA 21078 239 (1 292) (2 704) 17 321 (12.9)%
Normalized EBITDA margin 40.3% - - - 36.9% -382 bps

In 2020, our normalized EBITDA declined 12.9%, while our normalized EBITDA margin contracted 382 bps, reaching 36.9%.

Consolidated volumes declined by 5.7%, with own beer volumes down 5.8% and non-beer volumes down 3.8%, driven by the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Consolidated revenue declined by 3.7% to 46 881m US dollar, with revenue per hectoliter growth 2.1%. Combined revenues of our global
brands, Budweiser, Stella Artois and Corona declined by 5.0% globally and 5.3% outside of their respective home markets.

Consolidated Cost of Sales (CoS) increased 3.1%, and increased 9.8% on a per hectoliter basis, driven primarily by operational
deleveraging resulting from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our volumes and by supply chain adjustments implemented to meet
evolving demand.

Consolidated other operating income/(expenses) in 2020 decreased by 46.2% primarily driven by lower other operating income in 2020
as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and one-off gains in 2019 that were not repeated in 2020. In the fourth quarter of 2020, Ambev,
our subsidiary, concluded the calculation of its tax credits on a judicial decision related to the exclusion of the Value-Added Tax (ICMS)
from the taxable basis of the social contribution on gross revenues (PIS and COFINS). The decision refers to the period between
November 2009 and April 2015. As a result of this judicial decision and other tax credit adjustments, Ambev recognized 481m US dollar
income in Other operating income for the year ended 31 December 2020. The impact is presented as a scope change. Additionally,
Ambev recognized 315mUSdollarof i nterest income in Finance income for the
interest receivables are expected to be collected over a period exceeding 12 months after the balance sheet date. As of 31 December
2020, the total amount of such credits and interest receivables represented 997m US dollar. Underlying profit attributable to equity holders
and underlying EPS are positively impacted by 325m US dollar after tax and non-controlling interest.
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VOLUMES

The table below summarizes the volume evolution per region and the related comments are based on organic numbers. Volumes include
not only brands that we own or license, but also third-party brands that we brew as a subcontractor and third-party products that we sell
through our distribution network, particularly in Europe. Volumes sold by the Global Export business, which includes our global
headquarters and the export businesses which have not been allocated to our regions, are shown separately.

Organic Organic
Thousand hectoliters growth growth %
North America 108 133 237 (1 525) 106 846 (1.4)%
Middle Americas 133 538 1072 (13 810) 120 800 (10.3)%
South America 139 664 93 4 452 144 209 3.2%
EMEA 85 888 (115) (9 566) 76 207 (11.2)%
Asia Pacific 93 168 (62) (11 456) 81 649 (12.3)%
Global Export and Holding Companies 1036 (55) (48) 933 (5.1)%
AB InBev Worldwide 561 427 1170 (31 954) 530 644 (5.7)%

North America total volumes decreased by 1.4%. In response to the COVID-1 9 p an d e matb p mé dersaapd other social
distancing measures were implemented in the United States beginning in the middle of March 2020. We have since observed a gradual
reopening of the on-premise channel, though the pace has been varied and there have been additional restrictions enforced as the year
progressed. In the fourth quarter of 2020, the industry was impacted by the second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic and corresponding
restrictions to the on-premise channel. Our advanced planning and analytic capabilities and global supply chain enabled us to effectively
serve customers and consumers even with continued industry pressure and volatility caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Our sales-to-
retail ers (eldBDRY% id2020dsdghtly befow an industry that declined by 0.1%. This resulted in an estimated market share
loss of 5 bps, as our above core portfolio gained an estimated 110 bps and our mainstream brands lost an estimated 115 bps. Our sales-
to-wholesaler s ( A STWs 0) declined by 1.c@nfihued © wutperformpdriven by the engom@ mamentum iofo
Michelob ULTRA and successful innovations such as Bud Light Seltzer. Michelob ULTRA was once again the second-highest selling beer
by value in the United States, after Bud Light, and was the number one share gainer in beer excluding flavored malt beverages in 2020,
according to IRI. In addition, our portfolio of seltzers grew at double the rate of the industry, driven by a successful launch of Bud Light
Seltzer. Continued execution of our commercial strategy has also resulted in flat share of mainstream segment in 2020.

In Canada, the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a shift from the on-premise to the off-premise channel: as government restrictions came

into place in the middle of March 2020, the on-premise channel was effectively shut down. In the fourth quarter of 2020, a second wave

of the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in renewed restrictions. Our business in Canada grew volumes by low single digits in 2020, ahead of

the industry, due to the consistent execution of our commercial strategy. This was driven by the outperformance of our above core brands,

led by Corona and Michelob ULTRA. Corona grew by high single digits and Michelob ULTRA was the fastest growing beer brand for the

second year in a row. Our beyond beer portfolio grew by over 25%, driven by successful innovationsi n t he Mi keds Hard bran
the expansion of the hard seltzer category.

Middle Americas total volumes decreased by 10.3%. In 2020, our business in Mexico delivered a very healthy performance in the context
of a volatile external environment. Our volumes in Mexico declined by high single digits due to a two-month government-mandated
shutdown of our operations in the second quarter of 2020. We rapidly resumed operations and outperformed the industry in the year,
resulting in continued market share gains. We remain focused on developing our portfolio in line with the category expansion framework.
We continue to strengthen our core brands, with the growth of Corona and Victoria combined outperforming the industry in 2020. Our
above core portfolio is growing at a rapid pace, with the Modelo family of brands contributing the largest absolute volume growth in the
beer category. Michelob ULTRA also demonstrated strong results. Leveraging t he br andds consumer propositi ol
launched pilots of Michelob ULTRA Hard Seltzer as we drive our focus on industry growth, by leading the way in new segments. We
continue to support our customers through trade reactivation programs and digital solutions, such as the rollout of BEES, which more
than doubled in size throughout 2020. Our proprietary chain of retail stores, Modelorama, expanded its footprint with over 600 new
locations to reach a total of approximately 9,500 outlets across the country. We also successfully completed the third and fourth waves
of our expansion into the country's largest convenience store, OXXO, making our brands available in over 7,700 stores. In line with our
plan, we launched the next phase of the rollout into an approximately 1,100 more stores in January 2021. We remain excited about the
long-term growth potential and incrementality of these opportunities.

In Colombia, the first half of 2020 was significantly impacted by social distancing measures put in place in the middle of March 2020
including a national quarantine. The on-premise channel, which comprises slightly more than 50% of our volumes, was closed across the
country, although sales were permitted for home delivery. The restrictions began to ease throughout the second quarter of 2020 and in
June, a gradual re-opening of certain sectors of the economy led to improving consumer confidence and disposable income. In 2020, our
total volumes declined by high single digits, with volume declines in both beer and non-beer. Our teams continue to work closely with
local governments to support the safe recovery of the on-premise channel. We continue to successfully expand the premium segment,
led by our global brand portfolio, which grew by high teens in 2020. As part of our digital transformation journey, we accelerated the rollout
of BEES, which is now utilized by hundreds of thousands of our customers and converting the majority of our revenue digitally by the end
of 2020.

In Peru, volume declined by double-digits due to a government-mandated shutdown in March and April 2020 and stay-at-home restrictions
in the following months. However, our performance improved progressively as restrictions were lifted. We remain focused on implementing
our category expansion framework. Our global brands finished the year with a strong performance, growing by high double-digits. Our
smart affordability innovation, Golden, which provides consumers with a unique combination of maize and barley at affordable prices,
continues to deliver good results. We also announced that we are sourcing all of our maize for Golden from local farmers to continue
supporting the countryd6s economic recovery

In Ecuador, our volumes declined by double-digits in 2020, impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and associated government restrictions.
Our performance was significantly impacted by government measures starting in March 2020, that shut down the on-premise channel
across the country, as well as some local measures that shut down full regions. The restrictions were gradually lifted as of September
2020, although we remain cautious as government restrictions were re-implemented across the country in the last two months of 2020.
We continue to focus on expanding the beer category and are seeing success from our premiumization initiatives. Our global brands
finished the year strong, led by the expansion of Corona and Stella Artois, and we recently enhanced our premium brand portfolio with
t he | aunc hAdditibnallg, eve dcedfacused on bringing more consumers into the category through attractive price points with high
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quality products such as our local crop innovation, Nuestra Siembra, which continues to deliver strong results.

South America total volumes increased by 3.2%. In Brazil, our volumes increased by 4.2%. In March 2020, restrictive measures were
implemented across Brazilian states in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, including the lockdown of the on-premise channel impacting
our volumes in the first half of 2020. However, our beer business in Brazil delivered a strong performance this year in a challenging
environment. We grew beer volumes by 5.6% in 2020, outperforming the industry, through the successful execution of our customer- and
consumer-centric strategy and by driving operational excellence. Our premium portfolio outperformed the industry, we stabilized the
performance of our core brands and we delivered highly successful innovations such as Brahma Duplo Malte, a brand that has greatly
expanded the previously under-developed core plus segment. We continue to advance the digital transformation of our business, with our
online B2B marketplace and direct-to-consumer initiatives growing at an exponential rate and rapidly expanding across the country.
Almost half of our active customers are currently utilizing BEES. Our main direct-to-consumer initiative, Zé Delivery, is now in all 27
Brazilian states significantly accelerated with more than 27 million orders fulfilled in 2020. Our performance was also positively impacted
by government subsidies from April to December that increased consumer disposable income, leading to increased consumer demand.
Our non-beer volumes were flattish in 2020.

In Argentina, as of the middle of March 2020, a full national lockdown was implemented in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The on-
premise channel was effectively shut down and there were restrictions on hours of operation in the off-premise channel, which represents
approximately 90% of our volume. We delivered slight volume growth this year and outperformed the industry, even in the context of a
challenging consumer environment. This was a result of leveraging our diverse brand portfolio, led by the double-digit growth of our
premium and core plus brands, coupled with our unparalleled scale, operational excellence and the digital transformation of our business
with direct-to-consumer initiatives.

EMEA total volumes decreased by 11.2%. In Europe, we observed a widespread shut down of the on-premise channel beginning in
March 2020, which represented approximately 30% of our business in the region. In June 2020, we saw the gradual re-opening of the on-
premise channel in most of our markets, resulting in improved volume trends. In the fourth quarter of 2020, our performance was
significantly impacted by renewed on-premise shutdowns and mobility restrictions. As a result, our volume in Europe declined by high
single digits in 2020. We estimate we gained market share on a full year basis in the majority of our key markets, with particularly strong
gains in France, Germany and the Netherlands.

Our business in South Africa was significantly impacted by three outright government-mandated bans on the sale of alcohol over the
course of 2020, which resulted in double-digit volume decline. The first ban began in late March 2020 and lasted until the end of May
2020, which included a complete ban on the sale of alcohol beverages. Our brewery and distribution operations were severely restricted
by the government mandates in place during this time. We fully resumed our operations at the beginning of June 2020, however, our
business in South Africa was significantly impacted by a second outright ban on the sale of alcohol beverages implemented from mid-
July to mid-August 2020. We observed robust consumer demand once the government lifted the ban with volume growth resuming in
September 2020. On 29 December 2020, the government instituted a third alcohol ban, affecting a key selling week for beer. Outside of
these bans, we saw solid underlying consumer demand for our portfolio throughout 2020, resulting in estimated market share gains in
both beer and total alcohol. We saw consumers shifting to more affordable brands and bulk returnable packages, particularly benefitting
our core brands, such as Carling Black Label. Our flavored alcohol beverages, Brutal Fruit and Flying Fish, outperformed this year,
reinforcing the advantages of a diverse brand portfolio to meet consumer needs across styles and price points. The third alcohol ban
instituted on 29 December 2020 was lifted on 1 February 2021 and we resumed our operations on 2 February 2021.

In Africa excluding South Africa, measures taken to combat the COVID-19 pandemic varied by country, but implementation generally
began in late March and early April 2020 to shut down the on-premise channel in most markets. Our breweries mostly remained
operational and we were servicing the market, primarily the off-premise channel, in compliance with government regulations. Our business
was negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic, but we saw resilient consumer demand in many of our markets as restrictions
began to ease. We delivered healthy volume growth in Mozambique and Zambia this year. Volumes declined in Tanzania and Uganda,
as both markets were impacted by an ongoing challenging economic environment. In Nigeria, we delivered low single digit volume growth
in 2020, driven by successful investments in developing our brand portfolio and enhancing our route-to-market capabilities.

Asia Pacific total volumes decreased by 12.3%. In 2020, our volumes in China declined by 10.0%. COVID-19 struck China in late January
2020, just before the start of the Chinese New Year celebrations, one of the largest consumption occasions of the year. Most provinces
implemented significant lockdown measures to combat the virus, lasting from late January through at least the end of February 2020.
During this period, we observed virtually no activity in the nightlife channel, very limited activity in the restaurant channel and a meaningful
decline in the in-home channel. In March 2020, we observed a steady recovery in the in-home and restaurant channels, though the
nightlife channel was recovering at a slower pace due to ongoing social distancing measures. By the end of March 2020, we had re-
opened all our breweries in China and almost all our wholesalers had resumed operations. Our business in China continued to recover
throughout the course of the year, including in the on-premise channel. While we lost substantial market share between February and
April 2020 due to the COVID-19 impact on the on-premise channel, we recovered swiftly through our effective commercial actions and
resource allocation. We consistently gained market share in each subsequent quarter, especially in the fourth quarter of 2020, with an
estimated market share gain of 140 bps. As a result, we significantly reduced the 2020 market share loss to an estimated 55 bps.
Premiumization continues to be a key driver of growth, led by our premium and super premium portfolios, with brands such as Budweiser.
We estimate that we continue to lead the beer category in the e-commerce channel with a market share twice that of the next brewer and
are leveraging this growing channel to launch our innovation products.

South Korea faced a significant outbreak of the virus in late February 2020, though businesses largely remained open across most of the
country. In the third quarter of 2020, we faced a challenging operating environment, due to another COVID-19 outbreak that severely
impacted consumer confidence and resulted in significant restrictions on the on-premise channel. In the fourth quarter of 2020, South
Korea faced its most serious outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and consequently the toughest level of restrictions yet. We estimate that
our total market share declined by approximately 220 bps in 2020, more than half of which was driven by channel mix shift mainly resulting
from the COVID-19 pandemic. In the growing in-home channel, we grew market share in 2020, according to Nielsen. In the on-premise
channel, while we estimate that we lost market share in 2020, the trend improved throughout the year with gains in the fourth quarter of
2020 driven by the increasing momentum of Cass. We continued to lead the Premium space and estimate that we outperformed the
industry in this segment.



OPERATING ACTIVITIES BY REGION

The tables below provide a summary of the performance of each region, for the period ended 31 December 2020 (in million US dollar,
except volumes in thousand hectoliters) and the related comments are based on organic numbers.

Organic

growth

(31 954)
(1 957)
(640)

(2 596)
19
(402)

(2 980)
(2 704)

Organic

growth

(1525)
114
(67)

47
39
(40)
46
13

Organic

growth

(13 810)
(1127)
(8)
(1135)
127
(108)
(1117)
(939)

Organic

Currency
AB INBEV WORLDWIDE translation
Volumes 561 427 1170 -
Revenue 52 329 (81) (3 410)
Cost of sales (20 362) (121) 1488
Gross profit 31967 (202) (1922)
SG&A (16 421) 26 1008
Other operating income/(expenses) 875 407 (36)
Normalized EBIT 16 421 231 (950)
Normalized EBITDA 21078 239 (1 292)
Normalized EBITDA margin 40.3% - -

Currency
North America translation
Total volumes (thousand hls) 108 133 237 -
Revenue 15 488 44 (23)
Cost of sales (5 789) (20) 7
Gross profit 9 698 23 a7)
SG&A (4372) (44) 9
Other operating income/(expenses) 26 - -
Normalized EBIT 5352 (21) (8)
Normalized EBITDA 6 185 (16) (9)
Normalized EBITDA margin 39.9% - -

Currency
Middle Americas translation
Total volumes (thousand hls) 133 538 1072 -
Revenue 11912 23 (776)
Cost of sales (3 549) (24) 250
Gross profit 8 363 (1) (526)
SG&A (3 049) 8 204
Other operating income/(expenses) 121 7) 1
Normalized EBIT 5435 - (321)
Normalized EBITDA 6 356 - (403)
Normalized EBITDA margin 53.4% - -

Currency
South America translation
Total volumes (thousand hls) 139 664 93 -
Revenue 9 790 (142) (2 306)
Cost of sales (4 009) 3) 1075
Gross profit 5781 (144) (1 231)
SG&A (2 791) (8) 700
Other operating income/(expenses) 201 413 (35)
Normalized EBIT 3190 261 (566)
Normalized EBITDA 4 145 261 (788)
Normalized EBITDA margin 42.3% - -

growth

4452
750
(849)
(99)
(318)
(56)
473)
(439)

Organic

Currency

translation

Total volumes (thousand hls) 85 888 (115) -
Revenue 7911 (7) (234)
Cost of sales (3 506) 5 119
Gross profit 4 404 (2) (115)
SG&A (2 862) 1 69
Other operating income/(expenses) 264 - -
Normalized EBIT 1807 (2) (46)
Normalized EBITDA 2781 (1) (79)
Normalized EBITDA margin 35.2% - -

growth

(9 566)
(835)
(12)
(847)
95
(102)
(853)
(806)

Organic

growth %

530 644 (5.7)%
46 881 (3.7)%
(19 634) (3.1)%
27 247 (8.2)%
(15 368) 0.1%
845 (46.2)%

12 723 (18.3)%
17 321 (12.9)%
36.9% -382 bps
Organic

growth %

106 846 (1.4)%
15 622 0.7%
(5 870) (1.2)%
9752 0.5%
(4 369) 0.9%
(14) (157.7)%

5 369 0.9%
6172 0.2%
39.5% -21 bps
Organic

growth %

120 800 (10.3)%
10 032 (9.4)%
(3331) (0.2)%
6 701 (13.6)%
(2 710) 4.2%
6 (95.3)%

3997 (20.5)%
5014 (14.8)%
50.0% -313 bps
Organic

growth %

144 209 3.2%
8 092 7.8%
(3 786) (21.2)%
4 306 (1.8)%
(2 417) (11.4)%
522 (28.1)%
2412 (15.6)%
3179 (11.0)%
39.3% -720 bps
Organic

growth %

76 207 (11.2)%
6 835 (10.6)%
(3394) (0.3)%
3441 (19.2)%
(2 696) 3.3%
163 (38.5)%
907 (47.2)%
1895 (29.0)%

27.7% -724 bps



Currency Organic Organic

Asia Pacific translation growth growth %
Total volumes (thousand hls) 93 168 (62) - (11 456) 81 649 (12.3)%
Revenue 6 544 - (65) (831) 5 648 (12.7)%
Cost of sales (2 919) 5 32 277 (2 605) 9.5%
Gross profit 3625 5 (33) (554) 3042 (15.2)%
SG&A (2 216) 1 24 94 (2 097) 4.2%
Other operating income/(expenses) 230 - 1) (83) 146 (36.0)%
Normalized EBIT 1639 6 (11) (543) 1091 (32.8)%
Normalized EBITDA 2 287 6 (18) (538) 1737 (23.4)%
Normalized EBITDA margin 35.0% - - - 30.8% -430 bps
Currency Organic Organic
Global Export and Holding Companies translation growth growth %
Total volumes (thousand his) 1036 (55) - (48) 933 (5.1)%
Revenue 685 1 (6) (27) 652 (4.1)%
Cost of sales (590) (84) 6 19 (648) 2.9%
Gross profit 95 (83) - (8) 4 (56.9)%
SG&A (1 131) 68 2 (18) (2 079) 1.7)%
Other operating income/(expenses) 35 1 - (13) 22 (35.3)%
Normalized EBIT (1 001) (14) 2 (39) (1 053) (3.9)%
Normalized EBITDA (676) (11) 5 4 (677) 0.6%
REVENUE

Our consolidated revenue declined by 3.7% to 46 881m US dollar with revenue per hectoliter growth of 2.1%, driven by restrictions related
to the COVID-19 pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a shift from the on-premise channel to the off-premise channel in different
markets, impacting our top-line.

COST OF SALES

Our cost of Sales (CoS) increased by 3.1% and increased by 9.8% on a per hectoliter basis driven primarily by operational deleveraging
resulting from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our volumes and by supply chain adjustments implemented to meet evolving
demand.

OPERATING EXPENSES
Our total operating expenses decreased 2.5% in 2020:

9 Selling, General & Administrative Expenses (SG&A) decreased by 0.1%.

I  other operating income decreased 46.2% primarily driven by lower other operating income in 2020 as a result of the COVID-
19 pandemic and one-off gains in 2019 that were not repeated in 2020. In addition, in the fourth quarter of 2020, Ambev, our
subsidiary, concluded the calculation of its tax credits on a judicial decision related to the exclusion of the Value-Added Tax
(ICMS) from the taxable basis of the social contribution on gross revenues (PIS and COFINS). The decision refers to the period
between November 2009 and April 2015. As a result of this judicial decision and other tax credit adjustments, Ambev recognized
481m US dollar income in Other operating income for the year ended 31 December 2020. The impact is presented as a scope
change.

NORMALIZED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION (NORMALIZED
EBITDA)

Our normalized EBITDA declined 12.9% organically to 17 321m US dollar, with an EBITDA margin of 36.9%, representing an EBITDA
margin organic contraction of 382 bps.

I North America EBITDA increased 0.2% to 6 172m US dollar with a margin contraction of (21) bps to 39.5% as top-line growth,
favorable brand mix, and ongoing cost efficiencies were partially offset by lapping one-time prior year gains in other operating
income.

I Middle Americas EBITDA decreased 14.8% to 5 014m US dollar with a margin contraction of (313) bps to 50.0%, due primarily
to the two-month government-mandated shutdown during the second quarter of 2020 in Mexico, as we resumed operations
quickly to deliver top-line and bottom-line growth with margin expansion in the second half of 2020.

9 South America EBITDA decreased 11.0% to 3 179m US dollar with a margin contraction of (720) bps to 39.3%, impacted by
transactional currency headwinds and adverse packaging mix, with a year-over-year increase of one-way packaging,
particularly cans.

i EMEAEBITDA decreased 29.0% to 1 895m US dollar with a margin contraction of (724) bps to 27.7% as a result of operational
deleverage and channel mix in light of the on-premise shutdowns, as the on-premise channel carries higher EBITDA margins
in continental Europe, and three outright government-mandated bans on the sale of alcohol over the course of 2020 in South
Africa.

9 Asia Pacific EBITDA decreased 23.4% to 1 737m US dollar with a margin contraction of (430) bps to 30.8% primarily driven by
the top-line decline.

9 Global Export and Holding Companies EBITDA of (677)m US dollar in the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
(676)m US dollar).



Differences in normalized EBITDA margins by region are due to a number of factors such as different routes to market, share of returnable
packaging in the regionds sales and premium product mi x.

RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NORMALIZED EBITDA AND PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
Nor mal i zed EBI TDA and EBIT are measures utilized by us to demonstr a

Normalized EBITDA is calculated excluding profit from discontinued operations and the following effects from profit from continuing
operations attributable to our equity holders: (i) Non-controlling interest, (ii) Income tax expense, (iii) Share of results of associates, (iv)
Net finance cost, (v) Non-recurring net finance cost, (vi) Non-recurring items above EBIT (including non-recurring impairment) and (vii)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment.

Normalized EBITDA and EBIT are not accounting measures under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an alternative to
Profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders as a measure of operational performance or as an alternative to cash flow
as a measure of liquidity. Normalized EBITDA and EBIT do not have a standard calculation method and our definition of normalized
EBITDA and EBIT may not be comparable to that of other companies.

Million US dollar

Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 1405 9171
Non-controlling interest 797 1243
Profit of the period 2202 10 414
Profit from discontinued operations 22 (2 055) (424)
Profit from continuing operations 147 9 990
Income tax expense 12 1932 2786
Share of result of associates 16 (156) (152)
Non-recurring net finance cost/(income) 11 1738 (882)
Net finance cost 11 5959 4 355
Non-recurring items above EBIT (including non-recurring impairment) 8 3103 323
Normalized EBIT 12 723 16 421
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (excluding non-recurring impairment) 10 4 598 4 657
Normalized EBITDA 17 321 21 078

Non-recurring items are either income or expenses which do not occur regularly as part of the normal activities of the company. They are
presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying sustainable performance of the company due to
their size or nature. Details on the nature of the non-recurring items are disclosed in Note 8 Non-recurring items.
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IMPACT OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency exchange rates have a significant impact on our financial statements. The following table sets forth the percentage of
our revenue realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

2020 2019

US dollar 31.9% 30.2%
Brazilian real 12.7% 14.1%
Chinese yuan 9.1% 9.1%
Mexican peso 8.9% 9.0%
Euro 6.9% 6.1%
Canadian dollar 3.9% 3.4%
Colombian peso 3.8% 4.2%
South African rand 3.3% 4.1%
Pound sterling 2.7% 2.3%
Peruvian peso 2.5% 3.1%
Argentinean pesot 2.4% 2.3%
South Korean won 2.3% 2.5%
Dominican peso 1.9% 1.9%
Other 7.6% 7.7%

The following table sets forth the percentage of our normalized EBITDA realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019:

2020 2019

US dollar 31.6% 30.3%
Brazilian real 14.5% 14.5%
Mexican peso 13.0% 11.5%
Chinese yuan 7.6% 8.0%
Euro 7.1% 6.8%
Colombian peso 4.9% 5.3%
Peruvian peso 3.6% 4.6%
Canadian dollar 2.9% 2.6%
Dominican peso 2.8% 2.5%
South African rand 2.6% 3.6%
Argentinean pesot 2.0% 2.6%
South Korean won 1.9% 2.1%
Pound sterling 0.7% 0.3%
Other 5.0% 5.3%

In 2020, the fluctuation of the foreign currency rates had a negative translation impact, including hyperinflation accounting impact, of
3 410m US dollar on our revenue (2019: negative impact of 2 664m US dollar), of 1 292m US dollar on our normalized EBITDA (2019:
negative impact of 1 123m US dollar) and of 950m US dollar on our normalized EBIT (2019: negative impact of 843m US dollar).

Our profit from continuing operations (after tax) has been negatively affected by the fluctuation of foreign currencies, including
hyperinflation accounting impact, amounted to 288m US dollar (2019: negative impact of 582m US dollar), while the negative translation
impact, including hyperinflation accounting impact, on our EPS (profit attributable to our equity holders) was 174m US dollar or 0.09 US
dollar per share (2019: negative impact of 527m US dollar or 0.27 US dollar per share).

The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on our net debt amounted to 3 426m US dollar (increase of net debt) in 2020, as
compared to an impact of 444m US dollar (decrease of net debt) in 2019. The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on the
equity attributable to our equity holders amounted to 9 943m US dollar (decrease of equity), as compared to an impact of
1 143m US dollar (increase of equity) in 2019.

PROFIT

Normalized profit attributable to our equity holders was 3 807m US dollar (normalized EPS 1.91 US dollar) in 2020, compared to
8 086m US dollar (normalized EPS 4.08 US dollar) in 2019. Underlying profit (normalized profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev
excluding mark-to-market losses linked to the hedging of our share-based payment programs and the impact of hyperinflation) was
5 022m USD in 2020 (Underlying EPS 2.51 US dollar) as compared to 7 196m USD in 2019 (Underlying EPS 3.63 US dollar) (see Note
23 Changes in equity and earnings per share for more details). Profit attributable to our equity holders for 2020 was 1 405m US dollar,
compared to 9 171m US dollar for 2019 and includes the following impacts:

I Netfinance costs (excluding non-recurring net finance items): 5 959m US dollar in 2020 compared to 4 355m US dollar in 2019.
This increase was primarily due to mark-to-market adjustment linked to the hedging of our share-based payment programs
amounting to a loss of 1 211m USD dollar in 2020, compared to a gain of 898m USD dollar in 2019 resulting in a swing of
2 109m US dollar.

Hyperinflation accounting was adopted intio;018 to report the companyods
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Non-recurring net finance cost and income: Non-recurring net finance cost amounted to 1 738m US dollar in 2020 (2019: 882m
US dollar income). 1 008m US dollar loss resulted from mark-to-market adjustments on derivative instruments entered into to
hedge the shares issued in relation to the combination with Grupo Modelo and the restricted shares issued in connection with
the combination with SAB (2019: 878m US dollar gain) and 795m US dollar loss resulted from the early termination of certain
bonds (2019: 84m US dollar gain).

Non-recurring items: During the second quarter of 2020, we reported a 2.5 billion USD non-cash goodwill impairment charge.
The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a sharp contraction of sales during the second quarter of 2020 in many countries in which
we operate. We concluded by 30 June 2020 that a triggering event occurred which required us to perform an impairment test.
The impairment test considered three scenarios for recovery of sales for the tested cash-generating units: a base case (which
we deemed to be the most likely case at the time of the interim impairment test), a best case and a worst case. Based on the
results of the interim impairment test, we concluded that no goodwill impairment was warranted under the base and best case
scenarios. Nevertheless, under the worst case scenario ran with higher discounts rates to factor the heightened business risk,
we concluded that the estimated recoverable amounts were below their carrying value for the South Africa and Rest of Africa
cash-generating units. As a consequence, we determined that it was prudent, in view of the uncertainties, to record an
impairment charge of 2.5 billion USD applying a 30% probability of occurrence of the worst case scenario. The goodwill
impairment charge was partially offset by a 1.9 billion USD gain on the disposal of the Australia operations reported in
discontinued operations. In addition, in 2020, we incurred 603m US dollar of non-recurring costs mainly comprising of 157m US
dollar of restructuring costs, 239m US dollar of business and asset disposal costs mostly related to non-recurring impairment
of tangible and intangible assets and 182m US dollar of costs associated with COVID-19 (these costs are mainly related to
personal protection equipment for our colleagues, charitable donations and other costs incurred as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic).

Income tax expense: 1 932m US dollar in 2020 with an effective tax rate of 100.4% compared to 2 786m US dollar in 2019 with
an effective tax rate of 22.1%. The 2020 effective tax rate is negatively impacted by the non-deductible, non-cash goodwill
impairment loss and the non-deductible losses from derivatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs and
the hedging of the shares issued in a transaction related to the combination with Grupo Modelo and SAB. The 2019 effective
tax rate was positively impacted by non-taxable gains from these derivatives. The normalized effective tax rate was 30.9% in
2020 compared to 23.0% in 2019. The normalized effective tax rate excluding mark-to-market gains or losses linked to the
hedging of our share-based payment programs was 26.2% in 2020 compared to 24.9% in 2019.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interest: 797m US dollar in 2020 compared to 1 243m US dollar in 2019.

Profit from discontinued operations: 2 055m US dollar in 2020 compared to 424m US dollar in 2019. The increase primarily
relates to an exceptional 1.9 billion US dollar gain on the divestiture of the Australian operations completed on 1 June 2020.
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Lqui dity position and capit.

CASH FLOWS
Million US dollar 2020 2019
Cash flow from operating activities 10 891 14 036
Cash flow from investing activities 6 336 (4 931)
Cash flow from financing activities (8 475) (8 755)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8 752 350

Cash flow from operating activities

Million US dollar 2020 2019

Profit from continuing operations 147 9 990
Interest, taxes and non-cash items included in profit 17 024 11 029
Cash_ f_Iow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of 17 171 21 019
provisions

Change in working capital 592 (5)
Pension contributions and use of provisions (616) (715)
Interest and taxes (paid)/received (6 391) (7 063)
Dividends received 51 160
Cash flow from operating activities on Australia discontinued operations 84 640
Cash flow from operating activities 10 891 14 036

Our cash flow from operating activities reached 10 891m US dollar in 2020 compared to 14 036m US dollar in 2019. The decrease mainly
results from the negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our results in 2020 and the negative foreign currency translation impact
compared to prior year.

Cash flow from investing activities

Million US dollar 2020 2019

Net capex (3 687) (4 854)
Acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired/disposed of (510) (252)
Proceeds from Australia divestiture 10 838 219
Net proceeds from sale/(acquisition) of other assets (292) 33
Cash flow from investing activities on Australia discontinued operations (13) (77)
Cash flow from investing activities 6 336 (4 931)

Our cash inflow from investing activities was 6 336m US dollar in 2020 compared to a cash outflow of (4 931)m US dollar in 2019. The
increase in the cash flow from investing activities was mainly due to 10 838m US dollar proceeds from the divestiture of the Australian
business.

Our net capital expenditures amounted to 3 687m US dollar in 2020 and 4 854m US dollar in 2019. Out of the total 2020 capital
expenditures approximately 41% was used t o i mpr oductionfatilidges whiedprawayudesl fordogistics and commercial
investments and 15% was used for improving administrative capabilities and for the purchase of hardware and software.

Cash flow from financing activities

Million US dollar 2020 2019
Dividends paid (1 800) (5 015)
Net (payments on)/proceeds from borrowings (8 294) (8 008)
Payment of lease liabilities (461) (441)
Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC - 5575
Sale/(purchase) of non-controlling interests and other 2 086 (842)
Cash flow from financing activities on Australia discontinued operations (6) (24)
Cash flow from financing activities (8 475) (8 755)

Our cash flow from financing activities amounted to (8 475)m US dollar in 2020, as compared to a cash flow of (8 755)m US dollar in
2019. On 31 December 2020, we completed the issuance of a 49.9% minority stake in our US-based metal container operations to Apollo
for net proceeds of 3.0 billion USD.

In March 2020, the company drew the full 9.0 billion US dollar commitment under the 2010 Senior Facilities Agreement and as of 31
December 2020, the amount has been repaid in full. In addition, on 2 April 2020 and 3 April 2020, Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA and
Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. completed the issuance of series of EUR and USD bonds for a total amount of approximately 11.0
billion US dollar. Throughout 2020, we undertook a series of liability management initiatives to further de-risk our balance sheet while
creating value. We applied the 10.8 billion US dollar proceeds from the sale of our Australian subsidiary and approximately 11 billion US
dollar proceeds from the issuance of bonds to reduce gross debt with maturities over the next five years by approximately 18 billion US
dollar. These proactive actions extended our weighted average maturity from approximately 14 years in 2019 to over 16 years in 2020.
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As of 31 December 2020, we had total liquidity of 24.3 billion US dollar, which consisted of 9.0 billion US dollar available under committed
long-term credit facilities and 15.3 billion US dollar of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments in debt securities less bank
overdrafts. Although we may borrow such amounts to meet our liquidity needs, we principally rely on cash flows from operating activities
to fund the company6s continuing operations.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND EQUITY

Our net debt amounted to 82.7 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2020 as compared to 95.5 billion US dollar on a reported basis (and
84.6 billion US dollar, when adjusted for the proceeds of the divestment of the Australian operations) as of 31 December 2019.

Net debt is defined as non-current and current interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts minus debt securities and cash.

Net debtisafinanci al performance indicator that is used by our management
position. We believe that net debt is meaningful for investors as it is one of the primary measures our management uses when evaluating

our progress towards deleveraging toward its optimal net debt to normalized EBITDA ratio of around 2x.

Aside from operating results that are net of capital expenditures, the net debt is impacted mainly by the payment of interests and taxes
(6.4 billion US dollar increase of net debt), settlement of derivatives (0.7 billion US dollar increase of net debt), dividend payments to
shareholders of AB InBev and Ambev (1.8 billion US dollar), foreign exchange impact on net debt (3.4 billion US dollar increase of net
debt), the proceeds from the divestiture of the Australian business (10.8 billion US dollar decrease of net debt) and the proceeds related
to the issuance of a 49.9% minority stake in the company's US-based metal container operations (3.0 billion US dollar decrease of net
debt).

Net debt to normalized EBITDA increased from 4.0x for the 12-month period ending 31 December 2019 (when accounting for the proceeds
received from the divestment of the Australian operations, while excluding the last 12-month EBITDA from the Australian operations) to
4.8x for the 12-month period ending 31 December 2020.

Consolidated equity attributable to our equity holders as at 31 December 2020 was 68 024m US dollar, compared to 75 722m US dollar
as at 31 December 2019. The decrease in equity is primarily related to the combined effect of the weakening of the closing rates of the
Mexican peso, the South African rand, the Colombian peso, the Brazilian real and the Peruvian sol, and the strengthening of the Euro,
which resulted in a foreign exchange translation adjustment of 9 943m US dollar as of 31 December 2020 (decrease of equity).

Further details on interest-bearing loans and borrowings, repayment schedules and liquidity risk, are disclosed in Note 24 Interest-bearing
loans and borrowings and Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.

As of 31 December 2020,t he companydsatie@g from St andar dern&obliatians ahdA-2da shortBeBMB + f or |
obligations, with a negative opatiogkframdMobbdy é ® mpawn g-emohligatofser vi c e
and P-2 for short-term obligations, with a stable outlook.

Research and development

Given our focus on innovation, we place a high value on research and development. In 2020, we spent 296m US dollar in research and
development (2019: 291m US dollar). The spent focused on product innovations, market research, as well as process optimization and
product development.

Research and development in product innovation covers liquid, packaging and draft innovation. Product innovation consists of
breakthrough innovation, incremental innovation and renovation. The main goal for the innovation process is to provide consumers with
better products and experiences. This implies launching new liquid, new packaging and new draught products that deliver better
performance both for the consumer and in terms of top-line results, by increasing our competitiveness in the relevant markets. With
consumers comparing products and experiences offered across very different drink categories and the offering of beverages increasing,
our research and development efforts also require an understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of other beverage categories,
spotting opportunities for beer and developing consumer solutions (products) that better address consumer need and deliver better
experience. This requires understanding consumer emotions and expectations. Sensory experience, premiumization, convenience,
sustainability and design are all central to our research and development efforts.

Research and development in process optimization is primarily aimed at quality improvement, capacity increase (plant debottlenecking
and addressing volume issues, while minimizing capital expenditure) and improving efficiency. Newly developed processes, materials
and/or equipment are documented in best practices and shared across business regions. Current projects range from malting to bottling
of finished products.

Knowledge management and learning is also an integral part of research and development. We seek to continuously increase our
knowledge through collaborations with universities and other industries.

Our research and development team is briefed annually on the company's and the business regions' priorities and approves concepts
which are subsequently prioritized for development. The research & development teams invest in both short- and long-term strategic
projects for future growth, with the launch time depending on complexity and prioritization. Launch time usually falls within the next
calendar year.

The Gl obal I nnovation and Technol ogyaccGremodaes the( Fackdgifige Crdduct, Plocessa t e d i
Development teams and facilities such as Labs, Experimental Brewery and the European Central Lab, which also includes Sensory

Analysis. In addition to GITeC, we also have Product, Packaging and Process development teams located in each of our geographic

regions focusing on the short-term needs of such regions.
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Ri sks and uncertainti es

Under the explicitunderst andi ng that this is not an ex hau srcdrtairngies bre listed,belowBThdren Be v 6 s |
may be additional risks which AB InBev is unaware of. There may also be risks AB InBev now believes to be immaterial, but which could

turn out to have a material adverse effect. Moreover, if and to the extent that any of the risks described below materialize, they may occur

in combination with other risks which would compound the adverse effect of such risks. The sequence in which the risk factors are

presented below is not indicative of their likelihood of occurrence or of the potential magnitude of their financial consequence.

AB I nBevds business, financial condition, cash f | ows lyanpatteddopteer at i ng |
COVID-19 pandemic. AB InBev has experienced disruptions to its ability to operate its production facilities in some countries, and in the
future, it may experience further disruption to its ability to operate its production facilities or distribution operations as a result of regulatory

restrictions, safety protocol s, soci al distancing requirements and heightened sanita
operations or its business pvarkorsumlychdin, a gngsigaificantconsnuoussshogage of rlbwmaterial®s  n e t
or other supplies could impact AB I nBevds ability to madeaseinitsanuf act

costs of production and distribution. Sal es of AB | n Be v ¢memige chatinglchave beenrsignifitaetly impacted by the
implementation of social distancing and lockdown measures in most of its markets, including the closure of bars, clubs and restaurants

and restrictions on sporting events, music festivals and similar events. If the COVID-19 pandemic intensifies and expands geographically,

its negative impacts on AB I nBevds sal es c ouDeteriomténg esonongc apdrpaliicaln ged an
conditonsinmany of AB I nBevds maj or mda9parelensc, sach dséncréased unbnyployiméng deCréxses i

disposable income, declines in consumer confidence, or economic slowdowns or recessions, could cause a further decrease in demand

for its products. Furthermore, the ongoing economic impacts and health concerns associated with the COVID-19 pandemic may continue

to affect consumer behavior, spending levels and consumption preferences. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on global economic

conditions has impacted and may continue to impact the proper functioning of financial and capital markets, as well as foreign currency

exchange rates, commodity and energy prices and interest rates. A continuation or worsening of the levels of market disruption and
volatility seen in the recent past abibtytb dccessaov estsaof) capitdl wrebormwingse ifsf e c t on
business, its liquidity, its net debt to EBITDA ratio, credit ratings, results of operations and financial condition. Compliance with

governmental measures imposed in response to COVID-19 has caused and may continue to cause us to incur additional costs, and any

inability to comply with such measures can subject AB InBev to restrictions on its business activities, fines, and other penalties, any of

which can adversely affect its business.

Any of the negative impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic (or any future outbreak or recurrence of COVID-19 following the relaxation of
current social distancing and lockdown measures), including those described above, alone or in combination with others, may have a
mat eri al adverse effect on AB I nBevds results of operations, financi

AB InBev is exposed to the risk of a global recession or a recession in one or more of its key markets, and to credit and capital market

volatility and an economic or financial crisis (including as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic), or otherwise. These could result in reduced
consumption or sales prices tafr nAR olunBlew@®s upgrtoduwctlo,wewhircehs einrue and r
condition and results of operations, as well as AB |InBevoOsaryafture pr
its key markets. Consumption of beer and other alcohol and non-alcohol beverages in many of the jurisdictions in which AB InBev operates

is closely linked to general economic conditions and changes in disposable income. A continuation or worsening of the levels of market

disruption and volatiityseen i n the recent past coul d have acesseapitaldts busness, fefuisct on A
of operations and financial condition, and on the market price of its shares and American Depositary Shares.

AB |1 nBevds r es uard affectedfby flugtuatiorss tini eechasge rates. Any change in exchange rates bet ween AB | nBevad
operating companiesd functional currencies and the U.S. tdhedthear wi ||
results of those operating companies are translated into U.S. dollar for reporting purposes as translational exposures are not hedged.

Also, there can be no assurance that the policies in place to manage commodity price and transactional foreign currency risks to protect

ABInBevdos exposure will be abl e to s ucc eegsdxechangeyexpbsard, gspecialgaveér theslong-t he e f f
term. Further, the use of financial instruments to mitigate currency risk and any other efforts taken to better match the effective currencies
of AB I nBevds I|liabilities rdaseddostss cash flows could result in inc

Changes in the availability or price of raw materials, commodities, energy and water, including as a result of unexpected increases in

tariffs on such raw materials and commodities, like aluminum, could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations to the

extent that AB I nBev fails to adequately manage the riskrwvatvenherent
arrangements do not effectively or completely hedge changes in commodity prices.

AB InBev may not be able to obtain the necessary funding for its future capital or refinancing needs and may face financial risks due to

its level of debt and uncertain market conditions. AB InBev may be required to raise additional funds for its future capital needs or to

refinance its current indebtedness through public or private financing, strategic relationships or other arrangements and there can be no

assurance that the funding, if needed, will be available or provided on attractive terms. AB InBev has incurred substantial indebtedness

by entering into a senior credit facility and accessing the bond markets from time to time based on its financial needs, including as a result

oftheacqui si ti on of SAB. The portion of AB | ndbgdeld wil renmin significantdyahigleedas b al anc e
compared to its historical position. AB I nBevds increaseldind(gvel of
increasing its vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions, (ii) limiting its flexibility in planning for, or reacting to,

changes in its business and the industry in which AB InBev operates, (iii) impairing its ability to obtain additional financing in the future

and limiting its ability to fund future working capital and capital expenditures, to engage in future acquisitions or development activities or

to otherwise realize the value of its assets and opportunities fully, (iv) requiring AB InBev to issue additional equity (potentially under

unfavorable market conditions), and (v) placing AB InBev at a competitive disadvantage compared to its competitors that have less debt.

AB InBev's ability to repay and renegotiate its outstanding indebtedness will be dependent upon market conditions. Unfavorable

conditions, including significant price volatility, dislocations and liquidity disruptions in the global credit markets in recent years, as well as

downward pressure on credit capacity f or certain issuers without r e g ar agtht aouldtincreasee i s s u e |
costs beyond what is currently anticipated. Such costs coubfd have
operations or both. Further, AB InBev may restrict the amount of dividends it will pay as aresultof ABInBev ds | evel of debt an

to give priority to deleveraging toward its optimal net debt to normalized EBITDA ratio of around 2x.
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Also, a credit rating downgradecouldhave a materi al adverse effect on etaBondont®Brefimabce abi | it
its existing indebtedness. In addition, a failure of AB InBev to refinance all or a substantial amount of its debt obligations when they

become due, or more generally a failure to raise additional equity capital or debt financing or to realize proceeds from asset sales when

needed, would have a material adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations.

AB | nBevds r es uivdysffected bylindreabirg interesgrates. Although AB InBev enters into interest rate swap agreements
to manage its interest rate risk and also enters into cross-currency interest rate swap agreements to manage both its foreign currency risk
and interest-rate risk on interest-bearing financial liabilities, there can be no assurance that such instruments will be successful in reducing
the risks inherent in exposures to interest rate fluctuations.

Certain of AB InBev's operations depend on effective distribution networks to deliver its products to consumers, and distributors play an
important role in distributing a significant proportion of beer and other beverages. Generally, distributors purchase ABInBev 6 s pr oduct s
from AB InBev and then on-sell them either to other distributors or points of sale. Such distributors are either government-controlled or

privately owned but independent wholesale distributors fithatsuchi stri bu
distributors will not give priority to AB InBev's competitors. Further, any inability of AB InBev to replace unproductive or inefficient
di stributors, who could engage in practices that har m ABavdlabiByev s r e

of its products, or any limitations imposed on AB InBev to purchase or own any interest in distributors or wholesalers as a result of
contractual restrictions, regulatory changes, changes in legislation or the interpretations of legislation by regulators or courts could
adversely impact AB InBev's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The continued consolidation of retailers in markets in which AB InBev operates could result in reduced profitability for the beer industry
as a whole and indirectly adversely affect AB InBev's financial results.

A portionofthecompany 6 s gl obal portfolio consists of associates in new or dev:
may have a lesser degree of control over the business operations. The company faces several challenges inherent to these various

culturally and geographically diverse business interests. Although the company works with its associates on the implementation of

appropriate processes and controls, the company also faces additional risks and uncertainties with respect to these minority investments

because the company may be dependent on systems, controls anisk person
t hat the companyds ascaklietkeawsnagndioégtleataippns, which could have
business, reputation, results of operations and financial condition.

AB InBev may have a conflict of interest with its majority-owned subsidiaries. For example, a conflict of interest could arise if the subsidiary

brings a |l egal c¢claim for an alleged contractual fnaneia cohditionwAlconitich coul d
of interest may also arise as a result of any dual roles played by AB InBev directors who may also be managers or senior officers in the

subsidiary. Notwithstanding policies and procedures to address the possibility of such conflicts of interest, AB InBev may not be able to

resolve all such conflicts on terms favorable to AB InBev.

AB InBev relies on key third parties, including key suppliers, for a range of raw materials for its beer, alcoholic beverages and soft drinks,

and for packaging material. The termination of or any material change to arrangements with certain key suppliers or the failure of a key

supplier to meet its contractual obligations could have a material impact on AB InBev's production, distribution and sale of beer, alcoholic

beverages and soft drinks and have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial
condition. Certain of AB I nBevbs subsidiari es nomgolesguppliecsturdsrenultn ear |l y a
year contracts. The loss of or temporary discontinuity of supply from any of these suppliers without sufficient time to develop an alternative

source could cause AB InBev to spend increased amounts on such supplies in the future. In addition, a number of key brand names are

both licensed to third-party brewers and used by companies over which AB InBev does not have control. Although AB InBev monitors

brewing quality to ensure its high standards, to the extent that one of these key brand names or joint ventures, companies in which AB

InBev does not own a controlling interestand/or AB | nBevds | icensees are subject to negative g
ef fect on AB I nBevds busi npwsorfinancalcontitos of operations, cash f

The size of AB InBev, contractual limitations it is subject to and its position in the markets in which it operates may decrease its ability to
successfully carry out further acquisitions and business integrations. AB InBev cannot enter into further transactions unless it can identify
suitable candidates and agree on the terms with them. The size of AB InBev and its position in the markets in which it operates may make
it harder to identify suitable candidates, including because it may be harder for AB InBev to obtain regulatory approval for future
transactions. If appropriate opportunities do become available, AB InBev may seek to acquire or invest in other businesses; however, any
future acquisition may pose regulatory, antitrust and other risks.

The ability of AB I nBevds subsi di ar i e svariows codditisns and limitatians. Tha mabilitutp st r e a m
obtain sufficient cash flows from its domestic and foreign subsidiaries and affiliated companiesc oul d adver sely i mpact AB
to pay dividends and otherwise negatively impact its business, results of operations and financial condition.

An inability to reduce costs could affect AB InBev's profitability. Additionally, the Tax Matters Agreement AB InBev has entered into with
Altria Group Inc. imposes some limits on the ability of the Combined Group to effect some reorganizations which it may otherwise consider.

Failure to generate significant cost savings and margin improvement through initiatives for improving operational efficiencies could
adversely affect AB | nBebs satlpirloiftiy athda laadlyi ewma iAtBs | fniBreavnci al goal s.
to improve operational efficiency. If AB InBev fails for any reason to successfully complete these measures and programs as planned or

to derive the expected benefits from these measures and programs, there is a risk of increased costs associated with these efforts, delays

in benefit realization, disruption to the business, reputational damage or a reduced competitive advantage in the medium term.

A substantial portionof AB | nBevds operations are carried out in developing Eul
Il nBevods oper at i on atsiathabe neackets ate pubjechte teesustorsary risks of operating in developing countries, which
include, amongst others, political instability or insurrection, human rights concerns, external interference, financial risks, changes in
government policy, political and economic changes, changes in the relations between countries, actions of governmental authorities
affecting trade and foreign investment, regulations on repatriation of funds, interpretation and application of local laws and regulations,
enforceability of intellectual property and contract rights, local labor conditions and regulations, lack of upkeep of public infrastructure,
potential political and economic uncertainty, application of exchange controls, nationalization or expropriation, empowerment legislation
and policy, corrupt business environments, crime and lack of law enforcement as well as financial risks, which include risk of illiquidity,
inflation, devaluation, price volatility, currency convertibility and country default. Moreover, the economies of developing countries are
often affected by changes in other developing market countries, and, accordingly, adverse changes in developing markets elsewhere in
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the world could have a negative impact on the markets in which AB InBev operates. Such developing market risks could adversely impact

AB I nBevds business, resulatscohdopeonati éustaedmbreanthe gl obal

risks associated with doing business globally, including changes in tariffs. The Office of the United States Trade Representative has
enacted tariffs on certain imports into the United States from China. If significant tariffs or other restrictions are placed on imports from
China or any retaliatory trade measures are taken by China, this could have a material adverse effect on global economic conditions and
the stability of global financial markets, and may significantly reduce global trade, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on
AB | nBevds hewsmore efstskeyimarkets and results of operations.

Following the categorization of Argentinain ABInBevds results for the third queeartueulative f
inflation rate greater than 100%, the country is considered as a hyperinflationary economy in accordance with IFRS rules (IAS 29),
resulting in the restatement of certain results for hyperinflation accounting. If the economic or political situation in Argentina further
deteriorates, the South America operations may be subject to additional restrictions under new Argentinean foreign exchange, export

repatriation or expropri at i on regi mes that could adversely affect AB I nBevbs

Argentina.

AB InBev relies on the reputation of its brands and its success depends on its ability to maintain and enhance the image and reputation
of its existing products and to develop a favorable image and reputation for new products. An event, or series of events, that materially
damages the reputation of one or more of AB InBev's brands could have an adverse effect on the value of that brand and subsequent
revenues from that brand or business. Further, any restrictions on the permissible advertising style, media channels and messages used

may constrain AB I nBevdés brand building potentveaues. and thus reduce

Competition and changing consumer preferences in its wvarious
distribution channels could cause AB InBev to reduce prices of its products, increase capital investment, increase marketing and other
expenditures or prevent AB InBev from increasing prices to recover higher costs and thereby cause AB InBev to reduce margins or lose
market share. Also, innovation faces inherent risks, and the new products AB InBev introduces may not be successful, while competitors

may be able to respond more quickly to the emerging tr egrdisedbysuch

smaller microbreweries. In recent years, many industries have seen disruption from non-traditional producers and distributors, in many

cases, from digital only competitors. AB | nBev o dicipataichanging sassunseo u | d

preference for such platforms. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Labatt, the Canadian subsi di ary oilfay haR a joimtB/entu@ 0t enly bosrésehictanory-alcéghatb e v ,
beverages containing tetrdatlyachrneada dn aodi n(ollCBDDTHCWM)otehn deri ved from

non-alcohol CBD beverage in Canada only. This joint venture could lead to increased legal, reputational and financial risks as the laws
and regulations governing recreational cannabis are still developing, including in ways that AB InBev may not foresee. For instance, the
involvement in the legal cannabis industry in Canada may invite new regulatory and enforcement scrutiny in other markets. Cannabis
remains illegal in many markets in which AB InBev operates, and violations of Law could result in significant fines, penalties, administrative
sanctions, convictions or settlements arising from civil proceedings or criminal charges. Furthermore, the political environment and popular
support for cannabis legalization has changed quickly and remains in flux.

I f any of AB I nBevds product s inats dRIfBewcntay be subjectto pfoduct rechlls brother assotisded n
liabilities. Although AB InBev maintains insurance against certain product liability (but not product recall) risks, it may not be able to enforce
its rights in respect of these policies and, in the event that contamination or a defect occurs, any amounts it recovers may not be sufficient
to offset any damage it may suffer, which could adversely impact its business, reputation, prospects, results of operations and financial
condition.

In recent years, there has been public and political attention directed at the soft drinks and alcoholic beverage industries, as a result of
health care concerns related to obesity and the harmful use of alcohol (including drunk driving, drinking while pregnant and excessive,
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Negative publicity regarding AB InBev's products, publication of studies indicating a significant risk in using them or changes in consumer
perceptions in relation to them could adversely affect their sale and consumption and could harm AB InBev’s business, results of
operations, cash flows or financial condition. Concerns over harmful consumption of alcohol may cause governments to consider
measures such as increased taxation, implementation of minimum alcohol pricing regimes or other changes to the regulatory framework

governing AB I nBevds marketing and ot herutleermtne aooholdéverggesand sdft driaks .

consumption and any resulting restrictions may cause the social acceptability of our products to decline significantly and consumption

trends to shift away from them, which would have a material adverse effect on AB | nBevod6s business, fi

operations.

Negative publicity and campaigns by activists, whether or not warranted, connecting us, our supply chain or our business partners with
workplace and human rights issues, whether actual or perceived, could adversely impact our corporate image and reputation and may
cause our business to suffer. We have made a number of commitments to respect human rights, including our commitment to the principles
and guidance contained in the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, through our policies. Allegations, even if untrue,
that we are not respecting our commitments or actual or perceived failure by our suppliers or other business partners to comply with
applicable workplace and labor laws, including child labor laws, or their actual or perceived abuse or misuse of migrant workers could
negatively affect our overall reputation and brand image.

Climate change or other environmental concerns, or legal, regulatory or market measures to address climate change or other
environmental concerns, could have a long-term, material adverse impacton ABInBevés business and resul
water scarcity or poor water quality may affect AB InBev by increasing production costs and capacity constraints, which could adversely
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emi ssions trading regulations may al smesshmavesultsofopesatonse r se i mpact

AB InBevV's operations are subject to environmental regulations, which could expose it to significant compliance costs and litigation relating
to environmental issues.

AB InBev may not be able to protect its current and future brands and products and defend its intellectual property rights, including
trademarks, patents, domain names, trade secrets and know-how, which could have a material adverse effect on its business, results of

operations, cash flows or financial condition , and in particular, on AB I nBevds ability
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AB InBev could incur significant costs as a result of compliance with, and/or violations of or liabilities under, various regulations that govern
AB InBev’s operations or the operations of its licensed third parties, including the General Data Protection Regulation adopted in the
European Union, which was fully implemented in May 2018.

AB InBev is now, and may in the future be, a party to legal proceedings and claims, including collective suits (class actions), and significant

damages may be asserted against it. Given the inherent uncertainty of litigation, it is possible that AB InBev might incur liabilities as a

consequence of the proceedings and claims brought against it, including those that are not currently believed by it to be reasonably

possible, which could have a material adverse effecton AB | nBevds business, results of operation
Important contingencies are disclosed in Note 32 Contingencies of the 2020 consolidated financial statements.

AB InBev entered into a consent decree with the U.S. Department of Justice in relation to the combination with SAB, pursuant to which

AB | nBevds s ub s-Budch @mpaniesALh@ agresdenot to acquire control of a distributor if doing so would result in more

than 10% of its annual volume being distributed throughdi st ri but or shi ps controlled by AB | nBev in
its obligations under the settlement agreement is monitored by the U.S. Department of Justice and the Monitoring Trustee appointed by

them. Were AB InBev to fail to fulfill its obligations under the consent decree, whether intentionally or inadvertently, AB InBev could be

subject to monetary fines or other penalties.

AB InBev may be subject to adverse changes in taxation, which makes up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to consumers in

many jurisdictions. Il ncreases in excise and other indirAeBctl ntBaexvedss a
revenue or margins, both by reducing overall consumption and by encouraging consumers to switch to other categories of beverages,
including unrecorded or informal alcohol products. Minimum pricing is another form of fiscal regulation that can aff e c t AB | nBevd

profitability. Furthermore, AB InBev may be subject to increased taxation on its operations by national, local or foreign authorities, to

higher corporate income tax rates or to new or modified taxation regulations and requirements. For example, the work being carried out

by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development on base erosion and profit shifting and initiatives at the European Union

level (including the anti-tax-avoidance directive adopted by the Council of the European Union on 12 July 2016) as a response to

increasing globalization of trade and business operations could result in changes in tax treaties, the introduction of new legislation, updates

to existing legislation, or changes to regulatory interpretations of existing legislation, any of which could impose additional taxes on

businesses. An increase in excise taxes or other taxes could adversely affect the financial results of AB InBev as well as its results of

operations. Furthermore, the U.S. tax reformsignedon 22 December 2017 (the ATax Acto) brings m
While the Tax Act reduces the statutory rate of U.S. federal corporate income tax to 21% and provides an exemption for certain dividends

from 10%-owned foreign subsidiaries, the Tax Act expands the tax base by introducing further limitations on deductibility of interest, the

imposition of a fAbase -aebruosse otha xaon damdnttihe i mposi ti on oft axi nii nncuoometoa x af noorn g
changes, whichcoul d adversely impact the companyd6s results of opefumrei ons. T
interpretations and regulations that may be issued by U.S. tax authorities, and it is possible that future guidance could adversely impact

the financial results of the company.

Antitrust and competition laws and changes in such laws or in the interpretation and enforcement thereof, as well as being subject to

regulatory scrutiny, could affect AB InBev's business or the businesses ofitssubsi di ari es. For exampl e, in con
previous acquisitions, various regulatory authorities have imposed (and may impose) conditions with which AB InBev is required to comply.

The terms and conditions of certain of such authorizations, approvals and/or clearances required, among other things, the divestiture of

the company®ds assetthsi rodr pbaurstiineess,s ecshatnoges t o the companyds operations
to operate in certain jurisdictions. Such actions could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, financial

condition and prospects. In addition, such conditions could diminish substantially the synergies and advantages which the company

expects to achieve from such future transactions.

AB InBev operates its business and markets its products in emerging markets that, as a result of political and economic instability, a lack

of well-developed legal systems and potentially corrupt business environments, present it with political, economic and operational risks.

Although AB InBev is committed to conducting business in a legal and ethical manner in compliance with local and international statutory

requirements and standards applicable to its business, there isariskthat t he empl oyees or representatives
affiliates, associates, joint ventures/operations or other business interests may take actions that violate applicable laws and regulations

that generally prohibit the making of improper payments to foreign government officials for the purpose of obtaining or keeping business,

including laws relating to the 1997 OECD Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public Officials in International Business

Transactions such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the U.K. Bribery Act.

Al t hough AB I nBevds oper at i on sal itsrove@lubosiness repritatigruneay suffert onit maywfaceé additioralma t er i
regulatory scrutiny as a result of Cuba being a target of U.S. economic and trade sanctions. In addition, on 11 January 2021, the Trump
Administration designated Cuba as a state sponsor of terrorism].If investors decide to liquidate or otherwise divest their investments in
companies that have operations of any magni t u dtescouldbedverselyimpdsted. mar ket
In addition, Title Il of U.S. |l egislation k#Bawnoas Athe @adéehmsi zes private | awsuits
traffics in property confiscated without compensation by the Government of Cuba from persons who at the time were, or have since

become, nationals of the United States. Although this section of the Helms-Burton Act has been suspended by discretionary presidential

action since its inception in 1996, on 2 May 2019, the Trump Administration activated Title Ill of the Helms-Burton Act, thereby allowing

nationals of the United States that hold claims under the Helms-Burton Act to file suit in U.S. federal court against all persons trafficking

in property confiscated by the Cuban government.

As a result of the activation of Title Ill of the Helms-Burton Act, AB InBev may be subject to potential U.S. litigation exposure beginning 2
May 2019, including claims accrued during the prior suspension of Title Ill of the Helms-Burton Act. Given the unprecedented activation
of Title Ill of the Helms-Burton Act, there is substantial uncertainty as to how the statute will be interpreted by U.S. courts. AB InBev has
received notice of a claim purporting to be made under the Helms-Burton Act. It remains unclear how the activation of Title III of the Helms-

Burton Actwillimpact AB I nBevédés U.S. litigation exposure with respect to thi
AB InBev may not be able to recruit or retain key personnel and successfully manage them, which could disrupt AB | nBev 6s busi ness
have an unfavorable material effectcon ABInBev 6s f i nanci al position, its income from opera

Further, AB InBev may be exposed to labor strikes, disputes and work stoppages or slowdowns, within its operations or those of its

suppliers, or an interruption or shortage of raw materials for any other reason that coul d
earnings, financial condition, production level and ability to operate its business. ABInBev 6 s producti on may al so be
stoppages or slowdowns that affect its suppliers, distributors and retail delivery/logistics providers as a result of disputes under existing

collective labor agreements with labor unions, in connection with negotiations of new collective labor agreements, as a result of supplier
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financial distress or for other reasons. A work st oppafgae matarialss| owd o w!
from its suppliers or the transport of its products to its customers. Such disruptions could put astrainon ABl nBev 6s r el ati onshi
suppliers and customers and may have lasting effects on its business even after the disputes with its labor force have been resolved,

including as a result of negative publicity.

AB InBev relies on information technology systems to process, transmit, and store electronic information. Although AB InBev takes various

actions to prevent cyber-attacks and to minimize potential technology disruptions, such disruptionscoul d i mpact AB I nBevds
For example, if outside partiesgai ned access to AB I nBevds confidential data or strat
or made such information public, this dveadvaitagh, @rcould AX¥posd ABBnBevdrsits r eput at
customers to a risk of loss or misuse of information. More generally, technology disruptions can have a material adverse effect on AB

I nBevds business, results of operations, cash flows or financial <co

AB I nBevds business and oper mpactedy socalstechnica, natumlyghydicaboe othereligaatérs. v e | y i

Although AB InBev maintains insurance policies to cover various risks, it also uses self-insurance for most of its insurable risks. Should
an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured| i mi t s occur, this could adverltsdafopgratonmandct AB |
financial condition.

If the business of AB InBev does not develop as expected, impairment charges on goodwill or other intangible assets may be incurred in
the future that could be significant and that could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations and financial condition.

The audit report included in AB InBevds annual report is pnyepared
Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB). This lack of PCAOB inspections in Belgium prevents the PCAOB from regularly evaluating audits
and quality control procedures of any auditors operati naindestorsBel gi um

may be deprived of the benefits of PCAOB inspections. In addition, on 18 December 2020, the Holding Foreign Companies Accountable

Act (the AHFCAAO0) was enacted in the United States, halge@ommissarmong ot |
(the ASECO) to pr ohi biompasies framrbeing liseedona U.S. aacyities exahange @nmovec-the-counter market if

such company retains a foreign accounting firm that cannot be inspected by the PCAOB for three consecutive years, beginning in 2021.

The Board of Supervisors of CompanyAudi t ors (the ACTRO) in Belgium is in the process
PCAOB, which, if finalized, will enable the PCAOB to initiate joint inspections of Belgian accounting firms with the CTR. Signing of the

cooperation agreement with the PCAOB is expected to take place in the first half of 2021, and is contingent upon the European Data
Protection Board and Bel gian Dat a Rataprotection protocols fontairtedin thetagréesenta ppr oval o

A B | n B e wafy sharesrcairently trade on Euronext Brussels in euros, the Johannesburg Stock Exchange in South African rand, the

Mexican Stock Exchange in Mexican pesos and its ordinary shares represented by AmericanDe posi t ary Shares (the fAAL
the New York Stock Exchange in U.S. dollars. Fluctuations in the exchange rates between the euro, the South African rand, the Mexican

peso and the U.S. dollar may result in temporary differences betwe en t he val ue of AB I nBevds ordinar)
currencies, and between its ordinary shares and its ADSs, which may result in heavy trading by investors seeking to exploit such

differences.

Risks arising from financial instruments
Note 29 of the 2020 consolidated financial statements on Risks arising from financial instruments contain detailed information on the
companybds exposures to financi al risks and its risk management pol i

Changes i n | abels of altern
measur sme AP Ms 0)

Foll owing a report on European Union (EU) i ssuédrFsRS urseea saifr eAl t ermrn aitA
issued by the European Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA) in December 2019, the company will relabel in future disclosures fi n @ n
recurringo -drndcansl ytionginoint ems. The change will be effective with the

Events after t he bal ance sh

Please refer to Note 35 Events after the balance sheet date of the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate governance

For information with respect to Corporate Governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance section, which forms an integral part of
our annual report.
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St atement of t he Boar d

The Board of Directors of AB InBev SA/NV certifies, on behalf and for the account of the company, that, to their knowledge, (a) the financial
statements which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company and the entities included in the consolidation as a whole and (b) the
management report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the
entities included in the consolidation as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face.
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STATUTORY AUDITOR™S REPORT TO THE GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS™ MEETING OF ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV
NVISA ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

We presant to you our statutory audtor's report In the comtext of our statutary audt of the corsolldatad Mnandal statements of Anhewser-
Busch InBev NVISA (the “Company™) and Its subsidlares (jointly “the Group®). This repodt Includes our report on the consolldated financial
statements, as well 35 the ofher legal and requiatory reguiremends. This fms part of an Integratad whale and Is Indvisible.

We have teen appointed a5 stabutory audtor by the general meeting d.d. 24 Apdl 2013, Tollowing the proposal formulated by the board of
directars and folowing the recommendation by the audit commitiee and the proposal farmalated by the works' council. Our mandate will
expire on the date of the general meeting which will deliberate on e annual accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021. We have
perfarmed the stabutory audit of the consolidated financlal statements of Anhewsar-Busch InBay NVISA for two consacutive years.

Report on the consolldated nancial statements
Ungualified opinion

We have performed the statutory awdit of the Group's consolidated financial statements, which comprise the consoiidated statement of
financial poshion 3s at 31 December 2020, the consolldated Income statement, the consolldated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes In equity and the consolidated statement of cash Nows for the year then ended, and the noles to the
cansolidated financlal stabements, Including a semmary of significant accountng policles and other explanatory infarmation, and which s
characterised by a consolidated siatement of financlal position total of USD 226 410 millien and a prafit for the year of USD 2 202 million.
In caur apinion, the consolldated fnancial statements give 3 true and falr view of the Grown's net equity and consolltated financial position
a6 al 31 December 2020, and of Its consolidated Ninanclal perfommance and s consolidated cash Nows for the year then ended, In accondance
with International Financial Reporting Standarts as adopted by the European Union and with the legal and reguiatory reguirements
applicable In Balglum.

Basis for tmyuaiified opinion

We conducted our audlt in accondance with International Standarts on Awditing (15A5) 35 applicabie In Belglum. Furthermore, we have
apolied the Imernational Standards on Awdiing as approved by the IAASE which are appllcable to the year-end and which are nat yet
approwed at the natlonal level. Our responsiblities under those standarts are further described In the “Stabutory auditors responsibillties for
the awdit of the consolidabed inanclal stabements™ section of our repon. We have Tullied owr ethical responsioliiies In accordance with he
ethilcal reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated finandial statements In Belglum, Including the reguirements related o
Intepentence. We have ootained from the board of direciors and Comgpany ofMclals the explanafions and Information necessary for
pedfarming owr audit. We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtained ks suMclent and aporopriate io provide 3 basks for our opinilon.

Koy audlt matters
Key audit matiers are those matiers that, in our profiessional judgment, were of most slgrificance In our audi of the consolldated financial

stataments of the cument pefod. These matiers were addressed In the context of our awdit of the consolldated financlal statements as a
whiole and In forming owr opinion thereon, and we do not provide 3 separate oplnlon on these matiers.

Key Audlt Mattsr

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairmeant of goodwill and Intangible asssts with Indsfinite uastul
e

A5 described b Maotes 4, 14 and 15 fo ihe consolkated financial
siatements, the Company has recorged goodwil and Intangible assels
with Indefinite wsaful Be for an amount of $120 971 milllon and 539 385
millkan, respactively, as of Decambar 31, 2020, Impalment analyses of
goodwill and Indefinke-llved Intanglbée 3ssets are performed annually and
Whenever a inggering event has occwrmed, In order to determine whether
the camying walue excesds the recoverable amount These calculatians
are pased on estimates of fulure cash fows.

In wiew of the dacline In performance resuliing from the COVID-13
pandemic, the company conducied an Indenm impalment test In the
sacond quarter of 2020, As @ resuit of this Impalment 1est, management
cancleded, based on the valuations perfmmed, H was prudent in view of
the uncertalnties, io record an Impalment loss of 5{1.5) billon for the
South Africa cash generating unit and §{1.0) bilion for the Rest of Afnca
cash generating unit as of June 340, 2020

Intangible assels with Inoefinite useful ves have been bestad for
Impaimment using the same methodology and assumglons a5 goodwlll.
Basad on the assumptions described In the nate, the Comgpany concluded
that no impaiment charge Is wamanted of Intanglbée asse15 with Indefinia
usenl ves.

Addressing the matter Involved perfomming procedures and
E'UHI.IE'UI'IQ audi evidence In conneciion wih Tu'mlng our
overall colnion on the consolidated fnancial statements.
These procedures Inciuged iesting ithe eMeciiveness of
controls relating to management's goodwil and Indefinits-
Ived assat impaiment testing, Including controls over the
waluation of the Company's cash-ganerating units.

These procedures also Included, among others, testing
management's process for developing the fakr value
estimates; evaluating the appropratensess of the discounted
cash fiow moogal; testing the completeness, accuracy, and
refevance of underying data used In the modeis; and, with
the assistance of professionals with speclallzed skill and
knowladge, evaluating the significant assumplions usad by
management, refated o welghled average cost of capital,
the terminal growth rate and probabilty weighting of the
scananos used In the Intenm Impairment test.
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Impakrment tests are conducted by management, In accordance Wil 1AS
36, In whilch management apples a discounted cash fow approach based
on curment acguisition valuaton models for s cash-generating unfis
shiowing an Invested capital io EBITDA multiple above 9 and valuation
mufiipies for s other cash-generating unlis. The Company uses a
sirategic plan based on exiemal sources in respect of macro-economic
assumptions, Industry, Inflabion and forelgn exchange rabes, past
experience and ldentfied Infiathves In terms of marke! share, ravenue,
varlable and fied cost, capial expenditure and working capltal
assumptions. Managements cash flow projections Include significant
estimates and assumplons, related o weighted average cost of capital,
the terminal growth rate and prodatiiity weighting of the scenanos wsed In
the Imenm impalrment test.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing
procegures refating io the Impaiment of gooodwill and Intangike assets
with Indefinite useTul Ife ks a Key awdit matter are the Talowing: (1) the high
degree of audtor judgment and subjectivity in applylng procedures
reiating to the valuation of the eash-generating units due io the significant
amount of judgment by management when developing this estimate, (I}
the audit effort Involved the wse of professionals with specialized skl and
knowledge 1o assist In evaluating the audit evidence oblained from thess
procedures and () the significant awdit effort necessary in evaluating the
signifcant assumptions relating o the estimale, relaied to weighied
average cost of capital, the teminal growth rate and probability welghiing
of the scenaros used In the Interdm Impalrment 1est.

Evaluating management's assumptions invoived evaluating
whether the assumplions used by management were
reasonable congidering il) the cument and past perormance
of the cash-genarating unilt, (I} the consistancy with extarnal
market and Indusiry data, (i) whether thess assum

were conskstent with evidence obtained In other areas of the
audit and (W) analysis of sensiiiviles In the Company's
discounted cash fiow model.

Key Audlt Mattsr

How our gudit addressed the key audit matter

Uncertain tax positions

As described In Motes 4 and 32 fo the consolidated financlal stabaments,
gignicant judgment by management ks required In determining the
wordwide provision for Income tax. There are some transactons and
calculations for which the ullimate tax determination ls uncenain. Some
subsidianas within the group are Involved In fax audits and local enguiles
usually In relation to prior years. Investigations and negotiations with iocal
tax authosties are ongoing In vanous |wisdictions at the balance sheet
dale and, by thelr nature, these can take conslderable ime to conclude.
In assassing the amount of any Income 12 provisions to be recognized In
the consolidated inanclal statements, astimation ks made of the expected
successiul satiement of these makiers.

The pincipal considerations for our determination that performing
procedures relating to uncentain tax posiions ks & key audit mater are the
following (1) the high degree of auditor [udgment and subjectivity In
applylng procedures related to uncedaln fax posiions due o the
signicant amount of judgment by management when developing this
estimate, Including a high cegree of estimation uncerainty relative to the
femercus and complex tax laws, frequency of tax audis, and the
cansiderable time to concude Investigations and negotiations with local
tax authorities as a result of such audis, and () the Involvement of
professionals wih specialized sklll and knowledge to asslst In evaluating
the audit evidence cotained from these procedures.

Addressing the matter Imvolved parforming procedures and
euauatlng audi evidence In connecilion wih Tm‘mlng our
overall oginion on the consolkdated financial stataments.
These procadures Incluged testing the efectvencss of
conirols rl!latlng 1] I:DI'I'I[HEE’IESE of the uncariain t=x
Pm[l'lﬁ. a5 well 35 conbtmols over measurement of the
Iiaollty.

These procedures aiso Included, among others, (1) testing
thi Imfarnation used In the calkculation of the income tax
provisions,  Including  Intercompany  agreements,
International, federal, and state fling positions, and the
related final tax retwms; (Il testing the calculation of the
Income  fax  prosision by  Junsdiction,  Including
management's assessment of the technical merts of tax
positions and esimates of the amount of tax benefit
expected o be sustained; (1) testing the completeness of
management's assessment of both the Kenification of
uncertaln tax positions and possibie oulcomes thereal, and
{Iv} evaluating the status and results of Income tax audits by
the refevant tax authorities.

Professionals with speclalized sklll and knowiedge were
used to assist in the evaluation of the completeness and
measurement of the Compamy's uncertain tax postions,
Including evaluaing the reasonableness of management's
assessment of the chance of loss related 1o fax posilons
and the application of relevant tax laws.
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Responaiblifes of the board of directors for the preparation of the consolidated inanclal statements

The board of directars s responsibée for the preparation of consolldabed financlal statements that give a true and falr view In accordance
with Imternational Finanddal Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Unlon and with the legal and regulaiory reguirements
applicaible In Belglem, and for such Inlemal control as the boand of directors defermines ks necessary o enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements: that are free from material mésstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the consolidated Nnancial statements, the board of directors 15 responsibie for as6e66INg the Group's abliity to conbinwe as a
going concem, disclosing, a5 applicable, matters ralated to going concem and wsing the going concem basls of accounting wnless the boand
of directors elther intends to liguidate the Growg or to cease operations, or has no realiste atemative but o do so.

Statutory sudifor's responsiblitties for the audit of the consolidated Ananclal statements

Our objeciives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a while are free from matenal
missiabement, whether due to fraud or emor, and bo lssue an awditor's report that Incledes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance Is a high level
of assurance bul s not a guaranies thal an audi conducied In accordance with 1S5As will always detect a materal misstatemeant whan it
exlsts. Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are considersd material I, Indvidually or In the aggregate, they could reasonabdy be
expecied to imMuence the economic declslons of users aken on the basis of these consolidated Mnancial stalements.

In performing our audt, we comply with the legal, regulatory and normative framework applicable fo the audi of the consolidated financlal
statements In Belglem. A stafutory audit does not provide any assurance 35 to the Company's future viabllity nor as to the efficlency or
effectiveness of the board of directors” cument or future business management.

A5 part of an awdit In accortance with ISAS, we exencise professional judgment and maintain profiessional scepticlsm throwghout the audt.

We also

= |dentity and assess the risks of materal misstabtement of the consolidated Nnancial stabements, whether due o fraud or emor, deskign
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audlt evidence that Is suMcent and approprate to provide a basls
Tar our apinkon. The rsk of not detecting a matenal missiatement resulting from frawd s higher than for one resutting from emor, 35 Traud
miay Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omisslons, misrepresantations, or the overmise of intamal contnol;

= Obtaln an understanding of Intemal controd relevant to the awdit In order to deslgn awdit procedures that are appropriate in the
clroumnstances, but not for the pupase of expressing an opinlon on the effectivensess of the Group's Infemal control;

= Evaluate the appropriateness of actounting policles used and the reasonableness of accouning esimates and related disclosunes made
by the board of direcions;

= Concluge on the approgriabeness of the board of directors' use2 of the gaing concem bBasks of aceownting and, based on the audt evidence
oibtalned, whather a matenal uncertainty axists relatad to events or condiions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
confinue as a going concem. i we conclude that 3 matedal wncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our statuiony auditor's
report to the related disclosures In the consoldated Nnanclal statements or, I such disciosures are Inadequate, o modify owr opinkon.
Our conclusions ane based on the audt evidence obtained up fo the date of our statutory auditors report. Howeser, fulure events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue 25 a Going concem;

= Evaluale the overall presentalion, structure and comtent of the consolldated financlal statements, Including the disclosures, and whethar
the consolidated inancial statements represent the unoertying transactions and events In a manner that achieves falr presentation;

= Obtain sufcient and approprate aumt evidence reganding the financla informiation of the entites or business aciiviies within the Group
to express an apinion on the consodidated financial statements. We are responsibie Tar the drection, supervision and peormancea of
the Group awdit. We remain solely responsible for our audit oplinlon.

We communicate with the awdit committee regarding, among other matters, the panned scope and tming of the audi and significant audit
findings, Including any significant deficiencies In Inbemal comrod that we Identity during our audi. We also provide the audit commitiee with
a siatement that we have complied with relevant ethical reguirements regarding Independence, and io communicabe with them all
refationships and othier matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our Independencs, and where applicable, related safequards.
From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determinge those matters that were of most significance in the audt of the
cansolidated finandial statements of the cument perod and are therefore the key awdit matiers. We descrbe these mMatiers In our austors
report uniess law or requiation preciudes public disclosure about the matier.

other legal and regulatory requiremants

Rasponsibiiroes of the board of dIreCIors

The baard of drectors ks responsiiie for the preparation and the content of the direciors’ report on the consolldated financlal statements.
SEWTONY AUdiTor's responsiinmes

In the coniext of owr engagement and In accortance with the Belglan standard which |s complemeantary to the Imtemational Standards on
Awditing {ISAs) as applicable In Belgium, owr responsiblity ks to verfy, In all matedal respects, the direcions” report on the consolldated
financial statements and to report on these matters.

AspecTs relamed 10 te QIFBCTONS” MpOrT on the consolidamed Nnancial SIATements

In our opinkon, afier having performed specific procedures In relation to the directors” report on the consaolidated financial statements, this

report ks consistent with the consolidatad financlal statements for the yaar under audit, and i Is prepanad In accondance with articie 3:32 of
the Companies’ ard Associations’ Code,
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In the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we are also responsible for consldenng, In paricular based on the
Knowiedge acquired resulting from the audi, whether the directors' repor Is matenialy misstated or contains Information which Is
Inadequately disciosed or othenstsa misleading. In light of the procasures we have perfommed, thare are no matenal misstatemants we have

to report i you.

The non-financial information required Dy virue of aniclke 3:32, 52 of the Companies” and Associations” Code 16 Inclugead In the directors’
repor on the consolldatad financial statements. The Company has prapared e non-inancial Information, Dased on e referance framewon
Global Reporting Inflatve (GRI) Standands and relevant United Mations Sustainable Development Goals.

Howewer, In accondance with articke 3:50, §1, 5° of the Companies” and Associations’ Code, we 00 Nol express an opinion as 1o whether the
non-financial information has been prepaned In accordance with the sald framewark as disclosed In the consolidated nancial statemants.

S@EEmMent ralamed 10 INdependence

= Our regisiered audit irm and ouwr network @id not provide senvicas which ans incompatible with the statutory awdit of the consolidated
Ninanglal statemants, and our registared audit irm remained Independent of the Group In the course of our mandate.

= The fiees Tor additional senvices which are compatible with the siatutory awdi of the consolldated inanclal statements refemed io/n articie
3:65 ofthe Companies’ and Assoclations’ Code are comectly dsciosed and itemized in the nodes 1o the consolldated Nnanclal stataments.

OTher STamments

Thils report |5 conslstent with the addiional repodt to the audi commiites refemad o In anlicie 11 of the Regulation (EU) N° S37/2014.

Sint-Stevens-Woluwe, 24 Felbruary 2021

The statutory audiicr
PwC Bedrifsrevisonen BV / Reviseurs d'Enfreprises SRL

Representad by

bpvn. Hons

Kimen Hens
Statutory Audior
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Consoli dated I ncome stat eme

For the year ended 31 December

Million US dollar, except earnings per shares in US dollar

Revenue 46 881 52 329
Cost of sales (19 634) (20 362)
Gross profit 27 247 31967
Distribution expenses (5 104) (5 525)
Sales and marketing expenses (6 861) (7 348)
Administrative expenses (3 404) (3 548)
Other operating income/(expenses) 7 845 875
Profit from operations before non-recurring items 12 723 16 421
Impairment of goodwiill 8 (2 500) -
COVID-19 costs 8 (182) -
Restructuring 8 (157) (170)
Business and asset disposal (including impairment losses) 8 (239) (50)
Acquisition costs business combinations 8 (25) (23)
Brazil state tax regularization program 8 - (74)
Cost related to public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC 8 - (6)
Profit from operations 9620 16 098
Finance cost 11 (6 601) (4 873)
Finance income 11 642 518
Non-recurring net finance income/(cost) (1 738) 882
Net finance income/(cost) (7 697) (3473)
Share of result of associates and joint ventures 16 156 152
Profit before tax 2079 12 776
Income tax expense 12 (1 932) (2 786)
Profit from continuing operations 147 9 990
Profit from discontinued operations 22 2 055 424
Profit of the period 2202 10 414
Profit from continuing operations attributable to:

Equity holders of AB InBev (650) 8 748

Non-controlling interest 797 1243
Profit of the period attributable to:

Equity holders of AB InBev 1405 9171

Non-controlling interest 797 1243
Basic earnings per share 23 0.70 4.62
Diluted earnings per share 23 0.69 4.53
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 23 (0.33) 4.41
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 23 (0.33) 4.32
Basic earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations? 23 1.91 4.08
D|Iuteql earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued 23 187 3.09
operations?
Underlying earnings per share! 23 2.51 3.63

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

1 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued operations, as well as Underlying EPS, are not defined
metrics in IFRS. Refer to Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings per share for more details.
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Consoli dated statement

For the year ended 31 December
Million US dollar

Profit of the period

Other comprehensive income/(loss): items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits

Other comprehensive income/(loss): items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations’

Effective portion of changes in fair value of net investment hedges

Cash flow hedges recognized in equity

Cash flow hedges and cumulative translation adjustments reclassified from equity to profit or loss in
relation to Australia divestiture

Cash flow hedges reclassified from equity to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of AB InBev
Non-controlling interest

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

1 See Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings per share.
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2020

2202

(263)
(263)

(10 951)
479
739

426

(533)
(9 841)

(10 104)

(7 901)

(8 156)
255

of

2019

10414

(182)
(182)

947
(157)
182

(292)
680

498
10912

10 044
867



Consoli dated

As at
Million US dollar

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in associates and joint ventures
Investment securities
Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits

Income tax receivables
Derivatives

Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Investment securities
Inventories

Income tax receivables
Derivatives

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital

Share premium

Reserves

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Employee benefits

Deferred tax liabilities

Income tax payables

Derivatives

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Income tax payables

Derivatives

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes

13
14
15
16
17
18
25

29
20

17
19

29
20
21
22

23

33

24
25
18

29
28
27

21
24

29
28
27
22

31 December 2020

26 419
120 971
41 527
6143
137
2019

6

869
138
1661
199 891

396

4 482
655
827

4 833
15 252
74

26 519

226 410

1736
17 620
17 798
30 870
68 024

10 327
78 351

95 478
2970
12 627
808
1759
1522
544
115 707

5)
3081
1036
5 046

22 965
219

32 352

226 410

of

31 December 2019

27 544
128 114
42 452
5861
110
1719
14
1081
132

807
207 834

92
4427
627
230
6187
7238
10013
28 814

236 648

1736
17 620
24 882
31484
75722

8 831
84 553

97 564
2848
12 824
1022
352
1943
701
117 254

68
5410
1346
3799

22 864
210
1145
34 841

236 648



Consoli dated statement of changes

Attributable to equity holders of AB InBev
SHECE Other

based comprehensive
Issued Share Treasury payments income

Retained

I N

Non-
controlling
interest

eqgul

Million US dollar Capital premium IEES Reserves reserves reservest
As per 1 January 2019 1736 17 620 (6 549) 45726 2 037 (22 152)
Profit of the period - - - - - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (gains/(losses)) - - - - - 1143
Cash flow hedges - - - - - (97)
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - - - - (173)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - - - - 873
Dividends - - - - - -
Treasury shares - - 279 - - -
Share-based payments - - - - 290 -
Sale/(purchase) of non-controlling interest - - - 4378 - -

Hyperinflation monetary adjustments - - - - - N
Scope and other changes - - - - - -
As per 31 December 2019 1736 17 620 (6 270) 50 104 2 327 (21 279)

Attributable to equity holders of AB InBev
Share- Other

based comprehensive
Issued Share Treasury payments income
Million US dollar Capital premium shares Reserves reserves reservest
As per 1 January 2020 (21 279)
Profit of the period - - - - -
Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (gains/(losses)) - - - - - (9 943)
Cash flow hedges - - - - - 198
Cash flow hedges and cumulative translation adjustments reclassified 426
from equity to profit or loss in relation to Australia divestiture : ; ; ) )
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - - - - (243)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - - - - (9 562)
Dividends - - - - - -
Treasury shares - - 1359 - - -
Share-based payments - - - - 3 -
Hyperinflation monetary adjustments - - - - - -
Sale/(purchase) of non-controlling interests? - - - 1116 - -
Scope and other changes - - - - - -
As per 31 December 2020 1736 17 620 (4 911) 51 220 2330 (30 841)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

1 See Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings per share.

earnings
26 068
9171

9171
(4117)
(279)

219
421
31484

Retained
earnings

1405

1 405
(1118)
(974)

160

(87)
30 870

64 485
9171

1143
(97
(173)
10 044
(4117)
290
4378
219
421
75722

75722
1405

(9 943)
198

426

(243)
(8 156)
(1118)
385

3

160
1116
(87)
68 024

7 404
1243

(353)
(13)
%)
867
(1062)
29
1427
135
31

8 831

Non-
controlling
interest
8 831
797

(529)
8

(20)
255
(804)

17

99
1869
60

10 327

71889
10 414

790
(110)
(182)

10 912

(5 179)

319

5 805
354
452
84 553

84 553
2202

(10 473)
206

426

(263)
(7 901)
(1923)
385
20
259
2985
(26)
78351

2 The 2020 sale of non-controlling interest relates to the issuance of a 49.9% minority stake in the company's US-based metal container operations completed in December 2020 (refer to Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings per share for more

details).
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Consoli dated statement

For the year ended 31 December
Million US dollar

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit from continuing operations

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses on receivables, inventories and other assets
Additions/(reversals) in provisions and employee benefits

Net finance cost/(income)

Loss/(gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Loss/(gain) on sale of subsidiaries, associates and assets held for sale
Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Income tax expense

Other non-cash items included in profit

Share of result of associates and joint ventures

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use

of provisions

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Pension contributions and use of provisions

Cash generated from operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Dividends received

Income tax paid

Cash flow from operating activities on Australia discontinued operations
Cash flow from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

Sale of other subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of

Net proceeds from sale/(acquisition) of other assets

Proceeds from Australia divestiture

Cash flow from investing activities on Australia discontinued operations
Cash flow from investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Sale/(purchase) of non-controlling interests

Proceeds from borrowings

Payments on borrowings

Cash net finance (cost)/income other than interests

Payment of lease liabilities

Dividends paid

Proceeds from public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC
Cash flow from financing activities on Australia discontinued operations
Cash flow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts at beginning of year
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations

Cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts at end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

10
14

11

26

12

16

22

13/15

22
22

23
24
24

23
22

21

2020

147
4829
2500
218
278
7697
(69)

7

169
1932
(381)
(156)

17 171
516
(427)
503
(616)
17 147
(4 340)
255
51

(2 306)
84

10 891

(3 781)
94
(510)
(292)
10 838
(13)
6336

3039
14 822
(23 116)
(953)
(461)

(1 800)

(6)
(8 475)

8 752
7 169
(674)
15 247

of

2019

9990
4657
112
216
3473
(149)
(34)
340
2786
(220)
(152)

21019
(258)
(426)

679
(715)
20 299
(4 450)
523
160
(3136)
640
14 036

(5 174)
320
(385)
133
33
219
(77)

(4 931)

222
22 584
(30 592)
(1 064)
(441)

(5 015)
5575
(24)

(8 755)

350
6 960
(141)
7 169

1 The consolidated statement of cash flows for 2019 has been restated to include operating, investing and financing activities from discontinued operations
separately in the cashflow statement. In addition, the 2019 cash flow from investing activities has been restated to reflect reclassification of the cash flow
hedges in relation to the Australia divestiture reported in the financing activities in 2019 and recycled to profit or loss upon the completion of the transaction.
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1. Corporate information

Anheuser-Busch InBev is a publicly traded company (Euronext: ABI) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary listings on the Mexico
(MEXBOL: ANB) and South Africa (JSE: ANH) stock exchanges and with American Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE: BUD). Our Dream is to bring people together for a better world. Beer, the original social network, has been bringing people
together for thousands of years. We are committed to building great brands that stand the test of time and to brewing the best beers using
the finest natural ingredients. Our diverse portfolio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella
Artois®;, mul-<c ount ry brands Becko6sE, HoegaardenE, Lef f e Easaguith®, Mitactica®,
Bud Light®, Brahma®, Cass®, Castle®, Castle Lite®, Cristal®, Harbin®, Jupiler®, Modelo Especial®, Quilmes®, Victoria®, Sedrin® and
Skol®. Our brewing heritage dates back more than 600 years, spanning continents and generations. From our European roots at the Den
Hoorn brewery in Leuven, Belgium. To the pioneering spirit of the Anheuser & Co brewery in St. Louis, US. To the creation of the Castle
Brewery in South Africa during the Johannesburg gold rush. To Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified with a
balanced exposure to developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of approximately 164 000 employees
based in nearly 50 countries worldwide. For 2020, AB | nBev ds r e p46.0 bilkod US dellaréemcluding yeiatventures and
associates).

The consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2020 comprise the company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as A8 toBpaonyos Ii#dsgoimteventaessandyopefatoaso d t

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 February 2021.

2. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standard Board (1ASBQ and in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Unionupto31 December 2020 (.ABIhBeeddinot geady apply @any re &S requirements that were
not yet effective in 2020 and did not apply any European carve-outs from IFRS.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements
by the company and its subsidiaries.

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

Depending on the applicable IFRS requirements, the measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements is cost, net realizable
value, fair value or recoverable amount. Whenever IFRS provides an option between cost and another measurement basis (e.g.
systematic re-measurement), the cost approach is applied.

(B) FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Unless otherwise specified, all financial information included in these financial statements has been stated in US dollar and has been
rounded to the nearest million. As from 2009, following the combination with Anheuser-Bush, the company changed the presentation
currency of the consolidated financial statements from the euro to the US dollar to provide greater alignment of the presentation currency
with AB I nBevds mo sdurrescy and undeiflym@financiabpertomrmance. Thegfunctional currency of the parent company
is the euro.

(C) USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

(D) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled by AB InBev. AB InBev controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control,
potential voting rights are taken into account. Control is presumed to exist where AB InBev owns, directly or indirectly, more than one half
of the voting rights (which does not always equate to economic ownership), unless it can be demonstrated that such ownership does not
constitute control. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Associates are undertakings in which AB InBev has significant influence over the financial and operating policies, but which it does not
control. This is generally evidenced by ownership of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. A joint venture is an arrangement in which
AB InBev has joint control, whereby AB InBev has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and
obligations for its liabilities. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for by the equity method of accounting, from the date that
significant influence or joint control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases. When AB1 nBe v 6 s
losses exceeds the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture, the carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that AB InBev has incurred legal or constructive obligations on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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Joint operations arise when AB InBev has rights to the assets and obligations to the liabilities of a joint arrangement. AB InBev accounts
for its share of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses as from the moment joint operation commences until the date that joint
operation ceases.

The financial statementsof t he companyds subsidiaries, joint v eredffouthesang reporingn t
year as the parent company, using consistent accounting policies. In exceptional cases when the financial statements of a subsidiary,
joint venture, joint operation or associate are prepared as of a different date from that of AB InBev, adjustments are made for the effects
of significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the date of AB InBev's financial statements. In such cases, the
difference between the end of the reporting period of these subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint operations or associates from AB InBev's

reporting period is no more than three months. R e savelrepartedfom sothreet h e

month | ag. Therefore, est i masharsintherresultofihdse assooiates ferfthe kast quartdrBSudh esBneated s
are revisited when required.

Transactions with non-controlling interests are treated as transactions with equity owners of the company. For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity where there is
no loss of control.

All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between group companies have been
eliminated. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with joint ventures, joint operations and associates are eliminated to the extent of

oper

c omj

ABl nBevds interest in the entity. Unrealized | osses are thattherd nat ed i

is no evidence of impairment.

A listing of the c¢ompany djsintveoises, jointnopecationsaandt asssciatbssis sdtioa m iNetes 36 AB InBev
companies.

(E) SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A number of new standards, amendment to standards and new interpretations became mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2020 and have not been listed in these consolidated financial statements as they either do not apply or are
immaterialto ABInBev6s consolidated financial statements.

(F) FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the balance sheet. Gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to US dollar at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the dates the fair value was
determined.

Translation of the results and financial position of foreign operations
Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to US dollar at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Income statements of foreign operations, excluding foreign entities in hyperinflationary economies, are translated to US dollar at exchange

rates for the year approximating the foreign exchange rates prevailing at the dates of thetransacti ons. The component s
equity are translated at historical rates. E x ¢ h a nity ® U8 dollaf at perdod-c e s

end exchange rates are taken to other comprehensive income (translation reserves).

Financial Reporting in hyperinflationary economies
In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluation, causing Argentina’s three-year cumulative inflation to exceed 100%
and thus, triggering the requirement to transition to hyperinflation accounting as prescribed by IAS 29 Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies. | AS 29 requires that t he ropeatidngbe reported dsifthesewem pighly y 6 s

inflationary as of 1 January 2018.

Under IAS 29, non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at historical cost, equity and income statements of subsidiaries operating in
hyperinflationary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency, applying a general price
index. These re-measured accounts are used for conversion into US dollar at the period closing exchange rate. As a result, the balance
sheet and net results of subsidiaries operating in hyperinflation economies are stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of
the reporting period.

Consequently, the company applied hyperinflation accounting for its Argentinean subsidiaries for the first time in the year-to-date
September 2018 unaudited condensed interim financial statements, with effect as of 1 January 2018. The IAS 29 rules are applied as
follows:

I Non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at historical cost (e.g. property plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, etc.)
and equity of Argentina were restated using an inflation index. The hyperinflation accounting impacts resulting from changes in
the general purchasing power from 1 January 2018 are reported in the income statement in a dedicated account for
hyperinflation monetary adjustments in the finance line (see also Note 11 Finance cost and income)

I Theincome statement is adjusted at the end of each reporting period using the change in the general price index. It is converted
at the closing exchange rate of each period (rather than the year-to-date average rate which is used for non-hyperinflationary
economies), thereby restating the year-to-date income statement account for both inflation index and currency conversion.

The 2020 results, restated for purchasing power, were translated at the December 2020 closing rate of 84.143520 Argentinean pesos per
US dollar (2019 results - at 59.890668 Argentinean pesos per US dollar).
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Exchange rates
The most important exchange rates that have been used in preparing the financial statements are:

Closing rate Average rate
1 US dollar equals: 31 December 2020 31 December 2019 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Argentinean peso 84.143520 59.890668 - -
Brazilian real 5.196694 4.030696 5.133082 3.940998
Canadian dollar 1.273981 1.299449 1.346594 1.329140
Colombian peso 3438.52 3272.63 3 689.50 3 305.84
Chinese yuan 6.537798 6.961461 6.947936 6.886265
Euro 0.814930 0.890155 0.878101 0.892577
Mexican peso 19.948838 18.845242 21.182539 19.334915
Pound sterling 0.732646 0.757344 0.780195 0.784062
Peruvian nuevo sol 3.621009 3.317006 3.491580 3.346670
South Korean won 1 088.02 1154.54 1185.02 1 160.69
South African rand 14.686598 14.044287 16.213180 14.512975

(G) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is
recognized in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, is capitalized if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic
benefits are probable and the company has sufficient resources to complete development. The expenditure capitalized includes the cost
of materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure is recognized in the income
statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalized development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortization (see below)
and impairment losses (refer to accounting policy O).

Amortization related to research and development intangible assets is included within the cost of sales if production related and in sales
and marketing if related to commercial activities.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets.

Supply and distribution rights

A supply right is the right for AB InBev to supply a customer and the commitment by the customer to purchase from AB InBev. A distribution
right is the right to sell specified products in a certain territory. Acquired distribution rights are measured initially at cost or fair value when
obtained through a business combination. Amortization related to supply and distribution rights is included within sales and marketing
expenses.

Brands

If part of the consideration paid in a business combination relates to trademarks, trade names, formulas, recipes or technological expertise
these intangible assets are considered as a group of complementary assets that is referred to as a brand for which one fair value is
determined. Expenditure on internally generated brands is expensed as incurred.

Software

Purchased software is measured at cost less accumulated amortization. Expenditure on internally developed software is capitalized when
the expenditure qualifies as development activities; otherwise, it is recognized in the income statement when incurred. Amortization related
to software is included in cost of sales, distribution expenses, sales and marketing expenses or administrative expenses based on the
activity the software supports.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, acquired by the company, are recognized at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Other
intangible assets also include multi-year sponsorship rights acquired by the company. These are initially recognized at the present value
of the future payments and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures are expensed as incurred.

Amortization

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. Licenses, brewing, supply
and distribution rights are amortized over the period in which the rights exist. Brands are considered to have an indefinite life unless plans
exist to discontinue the brand. Discontinuance of a brand can be either through sale or termination of marketing support. When AB InBev
purchases distribution rights for its own products the life of these rights is considered indefinite, unless the company have a plan to
discontinue the related brand or distribution. Software and capitalized development costs related to technology are amortized over 3to 5
years.

Brands are deemed intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and, therefore, are not amortized but tested for impairment on an annual
basis (refer to accounting policy O).
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Gains and losses on sale

Net gains on sale of intangible assets are presented in the income statement as other operating income. Net losses on sale are included
as other operating expenses. Net gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the control has been transferred to the
buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing managerial
involvement with the intangible assets.

(H) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The company applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for acquisitions of businesses. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of the assets given, liabilities incurred and equity instruments issued.
Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired or assumed are measured separately at their fair value as of the acquisition

dat e. The excess of the cost of the acquisition over t hegured@mpanyods

recorded as goodwill.

The allocation of fair values to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is based on various assumptions requiring
management judgment.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,theacqui si ti on date carrying v aihtarestinthkEacduBeel nBe v

is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

() GOODWILL

Goodwill is determined as t he excess of 't he c on sterdsein thd netdamr vajuadf tthe identikable adsBts, | n Be v

liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate recognized at the date of acquisition. All
business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method.

In conformity with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, goodwill is stated at cost and not amortized but tested for impairment on an annual
basis and whenever there is an indicator that the cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated, may be impaired (refer to
accounting policy O). Goodwill is expressed in the currency of the subsidiary or jointly controlled entity to which it relates and is translated
to US dollar using the year-end exchange rate. In respect of associates and joint ventures, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in
the carrying amount of the investment in the associate.

I f AB I nBevOs interest i n the abditiesandacontingentaiabilities recégnizedhexceadslitieercost of thea b | e

business combination such excess is recognized immediately in the income statement as required by IFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill is expensed as incurred.

(J) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (refer to accounting policy O).
Cost includes the purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management (e.g. nonrefundable tax and transport cost). The cost of a self-constructed
asset is determined using the same principles as for an acquired asset. The depreciation methods, residual value, as well as the useful
lives are reassessed and adjusted if appropriate, annually.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets.

Subsequent expenditure

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item
when that cost is incurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Residual values, if not insignificant, are reassessed annually.
Depreciation is calculated from the date the asset is available for use, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets.

o
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The estimated useful lives are definedintermsof t he asset 6s expected ut frdnioneygeographidallareate o mpany

another. On average the estimated useful lives are as follows:

Industrial buildings 7 other real estate properties 20 - 50 years
Production plant and equipment:

Production equipment 10 - 15 years

Storage, packaging and handling equipment 5-7 years
Returnable packaging:

Kegs 2 - 10 years

Crates 2 - 10 years

Bottles 2 - 5years
Point of sale furniture and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Information processing equipment 3-5years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment.
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Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life.

Gains and losses on sale

Net gains on sale of items of property, plant and equipment are presented in the income statement as other operating income. Net losses
on sale are presented as other operating expenses. Net gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when the control has
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably, and there is no
continuing managerial involvement with the property, plant and equipment.

(K) LEASES

The company as lessee

The company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of a contract. The company recognizes a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, and payments for these leases are presented in
cash flow from operating activities.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate specific
to the country, term and currency of the contract. In addition, the company considers its recent debt issuances as well as publicly available
data for instruments with similar characteristics when calculating the incremental borrowing rates.

Lease payments include fixed payments, less any lease incentives, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate known at
the commencement date, and purchase options or extension option payments if the company is reasonably certain to exercise these
options. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and
right-of-use asset and are recognized as an expense in the income statement in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
those payments occurs.

A lease liability is remeasured upon a change in the lease term, changes in an index or rate used to determine the lease payments or
reassessment of exercise of a renewal and/or purchase option. The corresponding adjustment is made to the related right-of-use asset.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the
commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The right-of-use assets are depreciated starting at the commencement date over the shorter period of useful life of the underlying
asset and lease term (refer to accounting policies J and O).

The |l ease |liability -bsapiaegehbadsi anth b o6-bfadeassass® présentecintamed & Fhreo p d rgthyt
pl ant and eeruthepcomsohidatéd staténtent of financial position. In addition, the principal portion of the lease payments is

presented within financing activities and the interest component is presented within operating activities in the consolidated cash flow

statement.

The company as lessor

Leases where the company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases.
Leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially retained by the company are classified as operating
leases. Rental income is recognized in other operating income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(L) INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and
bringing them to their existing location and condition. The weighted average method is used in assigning the cost of inventories.

The cost of finished products and work in progress comprises raw materials, other production materials, direct labor, other direct cost and
an allocation of fixed and variable overhead based on normal operating capacity. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated completion and selling costs.

Inventories are written down on a case-by-case basis if the anticipated net realizable value declines below the carrying amount of the
inventories. The calculation of the net realizable value takes into consideration specific characteristics of each inventory category, such
as expiration date, remaining shelf life, slow-moving indicators, amongst others.

(M) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and generally
due for settlement within 30 days. Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of the consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they are recognized at the amount adjusted for the time value of money. The company
holds trade and other receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

Trade and other receivables are carried at amortized cost less impairment losses. To determine the appropriate amount to be impaired
factors such as significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will default, enter into bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, or delinquency in payments are considered.

Other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any impairment losses and foreign
exchange results are directly recognized in profit or loss.
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(N) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from
the date of acquisition that are readily convertible into cash. They are stated at face value, which approximates their fair value. In the cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts.

(O) IMPAIRMENT

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of i mpai r me nhmtisestinfated.
In addition, goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangibles with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment annually at the cash-generating unit level (that is a country or group of countries managed as a group below a reporting
region). An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the related cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is determined as the higher of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For an
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. The recoverable amount of the cash generating units to which the goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite
useful life belong is based on discounted future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units firstly reduce allocated goodwill and then the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment losses

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date. An i mpairment | oss is reversed only to the extent thatwauld
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

(P) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
A number of AB I nBevb6s accounting policies and not-financialiemsui r e

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. When measuring fair value, AB InBev uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values
are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

9 Level 1: inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
9 Level 2: inputs are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
I Level 3: fair value measurements incorporates significant inputs that are based on unobservable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The company applies fair value measurement to the instruments listed below.

Derivatives

The fair value of exchange traded derivatives (e.g. exchange traded foreign currency futures) is determined by reference to the official
prices published by the respective exchanges (e.g. the New York Board of Trade). The fair value of over-the-counter derivatives is
determined by commonly used valuation techniques.

Debt securities

This category includes both debt securities designated at FVOCI and FVPL. The fair value is measured using observable inputs such as
interest rates and foreign exchange rates. When it pertains to instruments that are publicly traded, the fair value is determined by reference
to observable quotes. In circumstances where debt securities are not publicly traded, the main valuation technique is the discounted cash
flow. The company may apply other valuation techniques or combination of valuation techniques if the fair value results are more relevant.

Equity securities designated as at FVOCI
Investments in equity securities comprise quoted and unquoted securities. When liquid quoted prices are available, these are used to fair
value investments in quoted securities. The unquoted securities are fair valued using primarily the discounted cash flow method.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities is generally determined using unobservable inputs and therefore fall into level 3. In
these circumstances, the valuation technique used is discounted cash flow, whereby the projected cash flows are discounted using a risk
adjusted rate.

(Q) SHARE CAPITAL

Repurchase of share capital
When AB InBev buys back its own shares, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, is recognized as a
deduction from equity under treasury shares.
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Dividends

Dividends paid are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on the date that the dividends are declared unless minimum

statutory dividends are required by local legislation or the bylaws oft he companyds subsidiaries. I'n such |
dividends are recognized as a liability.

Share issuance costs
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

(R) PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when (i) the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, (ii) it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and (iii) a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognized when the company has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring
has either commenced or has been announced publicly. Costs relating to the ongoing activities of the company are not provided for. The
provision includes the benefit commitments in connection with early retirement and redundancy schemes.

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the company from a contract are lower than
the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. Such provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

Disputes and Litigations

A provision for disputes and litigation is recognized when it is more likely than not that the company will be required to make future
payments as a result of past events, such items may include but are not limited to, several claims, suits and actions relating to antitrust
laws, violations of distribution and license agreements, environmental matters, employment related disputes, claims from tax authorities
related to indirect taxes, and alcohol industry litigation matters.

(S) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions, post-employment life insurance and post-employment medical benefits. The company
operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution plans throughout the world, the assets of which are generally held in
separate trustee-managed funds. The pension plans are generally funded by payments from employees and the company, and, for defined
benefit plans taking account of the recommendations of independent actuaries. AB InBev maintains funded and unfunded pension plans.

a) Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the income statement when incurred. A defined contribution
plan is a pension plan under which AB InBev pays fixed contributions into a fund. AB InBev has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation. For defined benefit plans, the pension expenses are assessed separately for each plan using the projected unit credit
method. The projected unit credit method considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement. Under
this method, the cost of providing pensions is charged to the income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries who carry out a full valuation of the plans at least every three years. The
amounts charged to the income statement include current service cost, net interest cost (income), past service costs and the effect of any
curtailments or settlements. Past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment / curtailment occurs or when the
company recognizes related restructuring or termination costs. The pension obligations recognized in the balance sheet are measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates based on high quality corporate bond yields, which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability, less the fair value of any plan assets. Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest) are recognized
in full in the period in which they occur in the statement of comprehensive income. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Where the calculated amount of a defined benefit liability is negative (an asset), AB InBev recognizes such pension asset to the extent
that economic benefits are available to AB InBev either from refunds or reductions in future contributions.

Other post-employment obligations

Some of AB I nBevds c-emppyent melicapberefitsitaltleir retivesst The entitlement to these benefits is usually
based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of
employment, using an accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension plans.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense at the earlier when the company is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement date and when the company recognizes
costs for a restructuring. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized if the company has made an offer encouraging
voluntary redundancy and when the company can no longer withdraw the offer of termination, which is the earlier of either when the
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employee accepts the offer or when a legal, regulatory or contractual requirementor r estri cti on on the companyos
offer takes effect.

Bonuses

Bonuses received by company employees and management are based on pre-defined company and individual target achievement. The
estimated amount of the bonus is recognized as an expense in the period the bonus is earned. To the extent that bonuses are settled in
shares of the company, they are accounted for as share-based payments.

(T) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Different share and share option programs allow company senior management and members of the board to acquire shares of the
company and some of its affiliates. The fair value of the share options is estimated at grant date, using an option pricing model that is
most appropriate for the respective option. Based on the expected number of options that will vest, the fair value of the options granted is
expensed over the vesting period. When the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the proceeds received.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services
received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the company obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.

(U) INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between the initial amount and the
maturity amount being recognized in the income statement (in accretion expense) over the expected life of the instrument on an effective
interest rate basis.

(V) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

(W) INCOME TAX

Income tax on the profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case the tax effect is also recognized directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

In accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes deferred taxes are provided using the so-called balance sheet liability method. This means that,
for all taxable and deductible differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the balance sheet
a deferred tax liability or asset is recognized. Under this method a provision for deferred taxes is also made for differences between the
fair values of assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination and their tax base. IAS 12 prescribes that no deferred taxes are
recognized (i) on initial recognition of goodwill, (ii) at the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and (iii) on differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future and to the extent that the company is able to control the timing of the reversal.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using currently or substantively enacted tax rates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The company recognizes deferred tax assets, including assets arising from losses carried forward, to the extent that future probable
taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized. A deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Effective 1 January 2019, AB InBev adopted IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments and is presenting income tax provisions
in income tax liabilities, consistent with the discussions held at the IFRS Interpretation Committee, which concluded that an entity is
required to present assets and liabilities for uncertain tax treatments as current tax assets/liabilities or deferred tax assets/liabilities.

(X) INCOME RECOGNITION

Goods sold

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company recognizes revenue when performance obligations are satisfied, meaning when
the company transfers control of a product to a customer.

Specifically, revenue recognition follows the following five-step approach:

9 Identification of the contracts with a customer

9 Identification of the performance obligations in the contracts

I Determination of the transaction price

9 Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts
I Revenue recognition when performance obligations are satisfied

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the amount that reflects the best estimate of the consideration expected to receive in
exchange for those goods. Contracts can include significant variable elements, such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price
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concessions, incentives, performance bonuses and penalties. Such trade incentives are treated as variable consideration. If the
consideration includes a variable amount, the company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the promised goods or services to the customer. Variable consideration is only included in the transaction price if it is highly
probable that the amount of revenue recognized would not be subject to significant future reversals when the uncertainty is resolved.

Royalty income
The company recognizes the sales-based or usage-based royalties in other operating income when the later of the following events

occur s: (a) the customer ds s ubs equ ece bbligatian tevwhichosome wrsalh of the salasrbdsed(ob ) t

usage-based royalty has been allocated has been satisfied (or partially satisfied).

Rental income
Rental income is recognized in other operating income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Government grants

A government grant is recognized in the balance sheet initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that it will be
received and that the company will comply with the conditions attached to it. Grants that compensate the company for expenses incurred
are recognized as other operating income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the company for the acquisition of an asset are presented by deducting them from the acquisition cost of the related asset.

Finance income

Finance income comprises interest received or receivable on funds invested, dividend income, foreign exchange gains, losses on currency
hedging instruments offsetting currency gains, gains on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship, gains
on financial assets measured at FVPL as well as any gains from hedge ineffectiveness (refer to accounting policy Z).

Interest income is recognized as it accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the asset) unless collectability is in doubt.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized in the income statement on the date that the dividend is declared.

(Y) EXPENSES

Finance costs

Finance costs comprise interest payable on borrowings, calculated using the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange losses,
gains on currency hedging instruments offsetting currency losses, results on interest rate hedging instruments, losses on hedging
instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship, losses on financial assets classified as trading, impairment losses on
financial assets as well as any losses from hedge ineffectiveness (refer to accounting policy Z).

All interest costs incurred in connection with borrowings or financial transactions are expensed as incurred as part of finance costs. Any
difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount of interest-bearing loans and borrowings, such as transaction costs and
fair value adjustments, are recognized in the income statement (in accretion expense) over the expected life of the instrument on an
effective interest rate basis (refer to accounting policy V). The interest expense component of lease payments is also recognized in the
income statement (in accretion expense) using the effective interest rate method.

Research and development, advertising and promotional costs and systems development costs

Research, advertising and promotional costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred. Development costs and systems
development costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred if they do not meet the criteria for capitalization (refer to
accounting policy G).

Purchasing, receiving and warehousing costs

Purchasing and receiving costs are included in the cost of sales, as well as the costs of storing and moving raw materials and packaging
materials. The costs of storing finished products at the brewery as well as costs incurred for subsequent storage in distribution centers
are included within distribution expenses.

(Z) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

AB InBev uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate the transactional impact of foreign currencies, interest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices on the c¢ompanyabrisk npreageiment poleynpeokibits theRise lofrd&igativé Snantial
instruments for trading purposes and the company does therefore not hold or issue any such instruments for such purposes.

Classification and measurement

Except for certain trade receivables, the company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Debt financial
instruments are subsequently measured at amortized cost, FVOCI or FVPL. The classification is based on two criteria: the objective of

the companyds business model for managing the assets; Epphymefiset her

nanc

ofpri nci pal and interestdé on the principal amount outstanding (the

The classification and measurement of the companyds financi al

9 Debt instruments at amortized cost: comprise investments in debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely

payments of principal and interest and the companyds busi

foreign exchange gains and losses and any impairment charges for such instruments are recognized in profit or loss.

I Debt instruments at FVOCI with gains or losses recycled to profit or loss on derecognition: comprise investments in debt
securities where the contractual cash flows are solely paymentsofpr i nci pal and interest ands
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and any impairment charges on such instruments are recognized in profit or loss. All other fair value gains and losses
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are recognized in other comprehensive income. On disposal of these debt securities, any related balance within FVOCI reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

9 Equity instruments designated at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains or losses to profit or loss on derecognition: these instruments
are undertakings in which the company does not have significant influence or control and is generally evidenced by ownership
of less than 20% of the voting rights. The company designates these investments on an instrument by instrument basis as
equity securities at FVOCI because they represent investments held for long term strategic purposes. Investments in unquoted
companies are subsequently measured at cost, when appropriate. These investments are hon-monetary items and gains or
losses presented in the other comprehensive income include any related foreign exchange component. Dividends received are
recognized in the profit or loss. These investments are not subject to impairment testing and upon disposal, the cumulative gain
or loss accumulated in other comprehensive income are not reclassified to profit or loss.

I Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL: comprise derivative instruments and equity instruments which were not designated as
FVOCI. This category also includes debt instruments which do not meet the cash flow or the business model tests.

Hedge accounting
The company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with highly probable
forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. To hedge changes in the fair
value of recognized assets, liabilities and firm commitments, the company designates certain derivatives as part of fair value hedge. The
company also designates certain derivatives and non-derivative financial liabilities as hedges of foreign exchange risk on a net investment
in a foreign operation.

At the inception of the hedging relationships, the company documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the
hedge. Hedge effectiveness is measured at the inception of the hedge relationship and through periodic prospective effectiveness
assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between hedged item and hedging instrument.

For the different type of hedges in place, the company generally enters into hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging
instrument match exactly the terms of the hedged item. Therefore, the hedge ratio is typically 1:1. The company performs a qualitative
assessment of effectiveness. In circumstances where the terms of the hedged item no longer exactly match the critical terms of the
hedging instrument, the company uses a hypothetical derivative method to assess effectiveness. Possible sources of ineffectiveness are
changes in the timing of the forecasted transaction, changes in the quantity of the hedged item or changes in the credit risk of either
parties to the derivative contract.

Cash flow hedge accounting
Cash flow hedge accounting is applied when a derivative hedges the variability in cash flows of a highly probable forecasted transaction,
foreign currency risk of a firm commitment or a recognized asset or liability (such as variable interest rate instrument).

When the hedged forecasted transaction or firm commitment subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial item, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserves is included directly in the initial carrying amount of the non-financial item when it is recognized.

For all other hedged transactions, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserves is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period
during which the hedged item affects profit or loss (e.g. when the variable interest expense is recognized).

When a hedging instrument or hedge relationship is terminated but the hedged transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss (at that point) remains in equity and is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
immediately.

Any ineffectiveness is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Fair value hedge accounting

When a derivative hedges the variability in fair value of a recognized asset or liability (such as a fixed rate instrument) or a firm commitment,
any resulting gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized in the profit or loss. The carrying amount of the hedged item is also
adjusted for fair value changes in respect of the risk being hedged, with any gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. The fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item is amortized to profit or loss from the date of discontinuation.

Net investment hedge accounting
When a non-derivative foreign currency liability hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, exchange differences arising on the
translation of the liability to the functional currency are recognized directly in other comprehensive income (translation reserves).

When a derivative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, the portion of the gain or the loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be effective is recognized directly in other comprehensive income (translation reserves) and is reclassified
to profit or loss upon disposal of the foreign operation, while the ineffective portion is reported in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the company has a currently legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(AA) SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are components of the companyds buavaiabeshatisact i vi t
evaluated regularly by senior management. The company has six operating segments.

AB I nBevds operating segment reporting format is geographical bec
predominantly by the factthat AB1 nBev operates in different geogr enpsirictaraand iaterrala s . The
reporting system to the Board of Directors is set up accoddei ngl y.

Americas, South America, EMEA and Asia Pacific.
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The aggregation criteria applied are based on similarities in the economic indicators (e.g. margins) that have been assessed in determining
that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic characteristics, as prescribed in IFRS 8. Furthermore, management

assessed additional factorssuchasmanage ment 6 s vi ews on the opti mal number of reportincg

peer comparison (e.g. Asia Pacific and EMEA being a commonly reported regions amongst the company s peers),

management 6s view on twebrepracipatandnerde granaldr iaformation.b e

The results of Global Export and Holding Companies, whi ch &incl
countries in which AB InBev has no operations are reported separately. Thecompany 6és fi ve geographic regi

as

ons

1

udes

|

and Hol ding Companies comprise the company6s six reportable segment

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
other than goodwill.

(BB) NON-RECURRING ITEMS

Non-recurringi t ems ar e those that in management 6s | wddf tharsize omreidedce.tSach b e

items are disclosed on the face of the consolidated income statement or separately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Transactions which may give rise to non-recurring items are principally restructuring activities, impairments, gains or losses on disposal
of investments and the effect of the accelerated repayment of certain debt facilities.

(CC) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

A discontinued operation is a component of the company that either has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and represents
a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations and is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

AB InBev classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use if all of the conditions of IFRS 5 are met. A disposal group is defined as a group of
assets to be disposed of, by sale or otherwise, together as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those
assets that will be transferred. Immediately before classification as held for sale, the company measures the carrying amount of the asset
(or all the assets and liabilities in the disposal group) in accordance with applicable IFRS. Then, on initial classification as held for sale,
non-current assets and disposal groups are recognized at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses
on initial classification as held for sale are included in profit or loss. The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent re-measurement.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are no longer depreciated or amortized.

(DD) RECENTLY ISSUED IFRS

To the extent that new IFRS requirements are expected to be applicable in the future, they have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated restated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

A number of amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2020, and have not been discussed

di

SC

either because of their non-applicability or immateriality to ABInBev 6 s consol i dated financial statements.
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4. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or, if the revision affects both current and future periods, in
the period of the revision and future periods.

Although each of its significant accounting policies reflects judgments, assessments or estimates, AB InBev believes that the following
accounting policies reflect the most critical judgments, estimates and assumptions that are important to its business operations and
understanding results: business combinations, intangible assets, goodwill, impairment, provisions, share-based payments, employee
benefits and accounting for current and deferred tax.

The fair values of acquired identifiable intangibles are based on an assessment of future cash flows. Impairment analyses of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are performed annually and whenever a triggering event has occurred, in order to determine whether the
carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount. These calculations are based on estimates of future cash flows.

The company uses its judgment to select a variety of methods including the discounted cash flow method and option valuation models
and makes assumptions about the fair value of financial instruments that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date.

Actuarial assumptions are established to anticipate future events and are used in calculating pension and other long-term employee
benefit expenses and liabilities. These factors include assumptions with respect to interest rates, rates of increase in health care costs,
rates of future compensation increases, turnover rates, and life expectancy.

The company is subject to income tax in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required to determine the worldwide provision for
income tax. There are some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Some subsidiaries within
the group are involved in tax audits and local enquiries usually in relation to prior years. Investigations and negotiations with local tax
authorities are ongoing in various jurisdictions at the balance sheet date and, by their nature, these can take considerable time to conclude.
In assessing the amount of any income tax provisions to be recognized in the financial statements, estimates are made of the expected
successful settlement of these matters. Estimates of interest and penalties on tax liabilities are also recorded. Where the final outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period that such determination is made.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with
a significant risk of material adjustment in the following year are further discussed in the relevant notes hereafter.

I'n preparing these consolidated financi al statements, the signifioc
accounting policies and the key sources of uncertainty relate mainly to the following: accounting for the COVID-19 pandemic impact on

the companyds results (i thediveditured thegrostralianiopedations arul the issoaace of 3 minority stake in

t he c o mypSabasgdinetal container operations as discussed below.

(A) COVID-19 PANDEMIC IMPACT

The companydés business, financial condition, cash fl ows acalbpperati
the COVID-19 pandemic. The public health crisis caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, as well as measures taken in response to contain
or mitigate the pandemic, have had, and are expected to wocliding,i nue to

without limitation: a negative impact on volume sold and revenue, a negative impact on cost of sales per hectoliter driven by non-variable
cost and the loss of operational efficiencies due to volume declines, impairment losses on inventories, impairment losses on trade and
other receivables, a series of cost incurred exclusively as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and goodwill impairment charges referred
to below and reported in exceptional items i see also Note 8 Non-recurring items, Note 14 Goodwill, Note 20 Trade and other receivables
and Note 19 Inventories.

Management considered the impact of COVID-19 and the current economic environment on the basis of preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. Although the company has noticed an adverse impact on its financial position, results of operations, and cash flows
during 2020, it continues to adequately manage its liquidity and capital resources (refer to Note 21 Cash and cash equivalents, Note 24
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings and Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments). As such, management concluded the
company is able to continue as a going concern.

Goodwill impairment

The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a sharp contraction of sales during the second quarter of 2020 in many countries in which the
company operates. The decline in performance resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic is viewed as a triggering event for impairment
testing in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. Consequently, the company conducted an impairment test during the second
quarter of 2020 for the cash-generating units showing the highest invested capital to EBITDA multiples: Colombia, Rest of Middle
Americas, South Africa, Rest of Africa and Rest of Asia Pacific.

During its interim goodwill impairment testing, the company considered several scenarios of the recovery of sales for the different cash-
generating units being tested and ran sensitivity analysis for key assumptions including the weighted average cost of capital and the
terminal growth rate. These scenarios werebas ed on manage mesrby 3Dsunea220uom thé recovery in a base case
(which the company deemed to be the most likely case at the time of the impairment test), a best case and a worst case scenario per
cash generating unit following the common recovery shapes: L, U and V where the letters describe the trajectory of key assumptions
tracking economic conditions. In view of the uncertainties, management assumed a 15 to 30% probability for the worst case scenario,
dependent on the cash generating units in this interim impairment testing.
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Based upon the results of the impairment test and considering the assumptions described in Note 14 Goodwill, the company concluded
that no goodwill impairment was warranted under the base and best case scenarios. Nevertheless, under the worst case scenario ran
with higher discount rates to factor the heightened business risk, the company concluded that the recoverable amounts were below the
carrying value for the South Africa and Rest of Africa cash-generating units. As a consequence, management concluded, based on the
valuations performed, that it was prudent in view of the uncertainties to record an impairment of goodwill of (1.5) billion US dollar for the
South Africa cash generating unit and (1.0) billion US dollar for the Rest of Africa cash generating unit applying a 30% probability of
occurrence. Refer to Note 14 Goodwill.

The company did not recognize any additional impairment of goodwill based on the results of its annual impairment testing conducted in
the fourth quarter of 2020.

COVID-19 costs

As required by IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements, the company has assessed the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on its
performance for the year ended 31 December 2020, and reported (182)m US dollar of costs in non-recurring items as a result of the
pandemic. These expenses mainly comprise costs related to personal protection equipment fort h e ¢ o mgmgplayge§, charitable
donations and other costs incurred as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. Refer to Note 8 Non-recurring items.

(B) DIVESTITURE OF AUSTRALIA BUSINESS TO ASAHI

On 19 July 2019, AB InBev announced an agreement to divest its Australia business (Carlton & United Breweries ( i C U BbdA3ahi at
16 billion AUD in enterprise value. As part of this transaction, the company granted Asahi rights to commercialize its portfolio of global
and international brands in Australia. The transaction closed on 1 June 2020.

As of 31 December 2019, AB InBev classified the assets and liabilities associated with the Australian operations as assets held for sale

and liabilities associated with assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations. In addition, since the results of the Australian operations represented a separate major line of business, these were accounted

for as discontinued operations, as required by IFRS 5 and presented in a separate line in the consolidated income statement(fipr of i t fr om
di scontinued operati ons 0) ,ote@pPAssetsclassified ikahgld f@ 8akliabilitRsassediated with adsets held

for sale and discontinued operations. On 1 June 2020, following the closing of the transaction, the company recognized a net gain on

disposal of 1.9 billion US dollar in discontinued operations. Refer to Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with

assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

© ISSUANCE OF MINORITY STAKE IN US-BASED METAL CONTAINER OPERATIONS

On 31 December 2020, AB InBev completed the issuance of a 49.9% minority stake in its US-based metal container operations to Apollo
Global Management, Inc. for net proceeds of 3.0 billion USD. This transaction allowed the company to create additional shareholder value
by optimizing its business at an attractive price and generate proceeds to repay debt, in line with its deleveraging commitments. AB InBev
retained operational control of its US-based metal container operations.

As required by IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, the transaction was reported in the equity statement resulting in recognition
of 1.9 billion US dollar in Non-controlling interest and 1.1 billion US dollar in Reserves. Refer to Note 23 Changes in equity and earnings
per share for more details.
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5. Segment reporting

Segment information is presented by geographical segments, consistent with the information available to and regularly evaluated by the chief operating decision maker. AB InBev operates its business through six business
segments. Regional and operating company management is responsible for managing performance, underlying risks, and the effectiveness of operations. Internally, AB | nBevds management uses pe
such as normalized profit from operations (normalized EBIT) and normalized EBITDA as measures of segment performance and to make decisions regarding the allocation of resources. The organizational structure
comprises five regions: North America, Middle Americas, South America, EMEA and Asia Pacific. In addition to these five geographic regions, the company uses a sixth segment, Global Export and Holding Companies,

for all financial reporting purposes.

On 19 July 2019, AB InBev announced the agreement to divest CUB, its Australian subsidiary, to Asahi. Consequently, as at 31 December 2019, the company classified the assets and liabilities associated with the
Australian operations as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale, respectively. In addition, since the results of the Australian operations represented a separate major line of business, these
were accounted for as discontinued operations (fiprofit fedoniJuheé20200nti nued operationso) up to 31 May 2C

All figures in the tables below are stated in million US dollar, except volume (million his) and Normalized EBITDA margin (in %).

Global Export and

North America Middle Americas South America Asia Pacific ; : AB InBev Worldwide
Holding companies

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Volume 107 108 121 134 144 140 76 86 82 93 1 1 531 561
Revenue 15 622 15 488 10 032 11912 8 092 9 790 6 835 7911 5 648 6 544 652 685 46 881 52 329
Normalized EBITDA 6172 6 185 5014 6 356 3179 4145 1895 2781 1737 2 287 (677) (676) 17 321 21078
Normalized EBITDA margin % 39.5% 39.9% 50.0% 53.4% 39.3% 42.3% 27.7% 35.2% 30.8% 35.0% - - 36.9% 40.3%
Depreciation, amortization and impairment (803) (833) (1017) (921) (767) (955) (988) (974) (646) (648) (376) (325) (4 598) (4 657)
Normalized profit from operations (EBIT) 5 369 5 352 3997 5435 2412 3190 907 1807 1091 1639 (1 053) (1 001) 12 723 16 421
Non-recurring items (see Note 8) (222) (11) (112) (51) (62) (96) (2 629) (61) (29) (41) (50) (63) (3 103) (323)
Profit from operations (EBIT) 5147 5341 3885 5384 2 350 3094 (1722) 1746 1 062 1598 (1 103) (1 064) 9 620 16 098
Net finance income/(cost) (7 697) (3 473)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 156 152
Income tax expense (1 932) (2 786)
Profit from continuing operations 147 9 990
Discontinued operations results 2 055 424
Profit/(loss) 2202 10 414
Segment assets (non-current) 63 765 63 725 72 331 76 168 12 348 13 452 35578 39 442 13 845 13 450 2024 1597 199891 207834
Gross capex 646 679 829 1286 727 1063 768 1208 508 626 303 312 3781 5174
FTE 20 281 20 040 48 751 52 412 40 630 41 603 22 357 23 804 26 510 29 482 5166 4574 163695 171915

For the year ended 31 December 2020, net revenue from the beer business amounted to 43 044m US dollar (31 December 2019: 47 984m US dollar) while the net revenue from the non-beer business (soft drinks and
other business) accounted for 3 837m US dollar (31 December 2019: 4 345m US dollar). Additionally, for the year ended 31 December 2020, net revenue from the companyds busi ne
13 815m US dollar (31 December 2019: 13693m US dol | ar) and net r ev e n ureBrazilramountad to® 868 m P dolfary(F Hecembar R0A%E 327 7mi US dollar).

On the same basis, net revenue from external customer s a30XmrUSHalar (8lbDeemmhterd2018: B68m bBVdellardand nomcurreitt asgets tocatedlimtihei ¢ i | €
country of domicile represented 2 496m US dollar (31 December 2019: 2 215m US dollar).
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6. Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

The table below summarizes the impact of acquisitions and disposals on the statement of financial position and cash flows of AB InBev
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

2020 2019 2020 2019

Million US dollar Acquisitions Acquisitions Disposals Disposals

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 149 44 - 1)
Intangible assets 162 128 - (29)
Investments in associates (©) (15) - -

Current assets

Inventories 33 43 - 7
Trade and other receivables 9 19 - (1)
Cash and cash equivalents 5 40 - -

Non-current liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (74) (11) - -
Trade and other payables (34) (110) - -
Deferred tax liabilities (6) (33) - 9

Current liabilities

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4) - - -
Trade and other payables (59) (65) - 2
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 174 40 - (27)
Non-controlling interest - (12) - 2
Goodwill on acquisitions and goodwill disposed of 185 682 - (22)
Loss/(gain) on disposal - - - (21)
Consideration to be (paid)/received (14) (275) - -
Net cash paid/(received) on prior years acquisitions/(disposals) 170 16 - (65)
Consideration paid/(received) 515 451 - (133)
Cash (acquired)/disposed of (5) (40) - -
Net cash outflow / (inflow) 510 411 - (133)
Net cash outflow / (inflow) on continuing operations 510 385 - (133)
Net cash outflow / (inflow) on discontinued operations - 26 - -

On 1 June 2020, AB InBev completed the divestiture of CUB to Asahi i see Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated
with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

On 30 September 2020, AB InBev completed the acquisition of the remaining 68.8% shares of Craft Brew Alliance for the net consideration
of 0.2 billion US dollar and hence obtained 100% control over the acquiree.

The company undertook a series of additional acquisitions and disposals during 2020 and 2019, with no significant impact in the
companyb6s consolidated financial statements.
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7. Other operating income/(expenses)

Million US dollar 2020 2019
Brazilian tax credits 481 -

Government grants 227 280
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and assets held for sale 56 172
License income 22 30
Net (additions to)/reversals of provisions (14) (10)
Net rental and other operating income 72 402
Other operating income/(expenses) 845 875

In the fourth quarter of 2020, Ambeyv, a subsidiary of AB InBev, concluded the calculation of its tax credits on a judicial decision related to
the exclusion of the Value-Added Tax (ICMS) from the taxable basis of the social contribution on gross revenues (PIS and COFINS). The
decision refers to the period between November 2009 and April 2015. As a result of this judicial decision and other tax credit adjustments,
Ambev recognized 481m US dollar income in Other operating income and 315m US dollar of interest income in Finance income (refer to
Note 11 Finance cost and income) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The income from government grants primarily relate to fiscal incentives given by certain Brazilian states and Chinese provinces, based
on the companyébés operations and developments in those regions.

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and assets held for sale, and net rental and other operating
income decreased to 128m US dollar in 2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

In 2020, the company expensed 296m US dollar in research, compared to 291m US dollar in 2019. The spend focused on product
innovations, market research, as well as process optimization and product development.

8. Non-recurring items

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements requires that material items of income and expense be disclosed separately. Non-recurring

items are items that in managementdés judgment need t o btainadpiogec| osed

understanding of the company’s financial information. The company considers these items to be significant and accordingly, management
has excluded them from their segment measure of performance as noted in Note 5 Segment Reporting.

The non-recurring items included in the income statement are as follows:

Million US dollar 2020 2019
Impairment of goodwill (2 500) -

COVID-19 costs (182) -

Restructuring (157) (170)
Business and asset disposal (including non-recurring impairment losses) (239) (50)
Acquisition costs business combinations (25) (23)
Brazil State tax regularization program - (74)
Cost related to public offering of minority stake in Budweiser APAC - (6)
Impact on profit from operations (3 103) (323)
Gain on disposal of Australia 1919 -

Non-recurring net finance income/(cost) (1 738) 882
Non-recurring taxes 155 (6)
Non-recurring non-controlling interest 228 108
Net impact on profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev (2 538) 661

In the second quarter of 2020, the company recognized (2 500)m US dollar of goodwill impairment for its South Africa and Rest of Africa
cash-generating units (see Note 4 Use of estimates and judgments and Note 14 Goodwill for further details).

COVID-19 costs amount to (182)m US dollar for the year ended 31 December 2020. These expenses mainly comprise costs related to

personal protection equipment for the companyds e mgdirecboomsegeencecfhar it ab

the COVID-19 pandemic.

The non-recurring restructuring charges for the year ended 31 December 2020 total (157)m US dollar (31 December 2019: (170)m US
dollar). These charges primarily relate to organizational alignments. These changes aim to eliminate overlapping organizations or
duplicated processes, taking into account the matching of employee profiles with new organizational requirements. These one-time
expenses provide the company with a lower cost base and bring a stronger focus to AB InBev’s core activities, quicker decision-making
and improvements to efficiency, service and quality.

Business and asset disposals amount to (239)m US dollar for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly comprising impairment of tangible
assets classified as held for sale as of 31 December 2020, intangible assets sold in 2020 and other intangibles. Business and asset
disposals amounted to (50)m US dollar for the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly comprising of costs incurred in relation to the
completion of 2018 disposals.
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The acquisition costs of business combinations amount to (25)m US dollar for the year ended 31 December 2020 and mainly relate to the
acquisition of Craft Brew Alliance. The acquisition costs of business combinations amounted to (23)m US dollar for the year ended 31
December 2019, primarily related to costs incurred to facilitate the combination with SAB.

In 2019, Ambev made a payment of (74)m US dollar to the State of Mato Grosso in relation to the Special Value-added Tax (ICMS)
Amnesty Program in Brazil in accordance with the Brazilian State Tax Regularization Program.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the company incurred (117)m US dollar of fees related to the initial public offering of a minority
stake of its Asia Pacific subsidiary, Budweiser APAC, of which (6)m US dollar were reported in the income statement and (111)m US
dollar were capitalized in equity. In addition, AB InBev also reported (58)m US dollar stamp duties in equity that are directly attributable
to the public offering of Budweiser APAC.

On 1 June 2020, the company completed the previously announced sale of CUB to Asahi resulting in a net exceptional gain of 1 919m
US dollar reported in discontinued operations. For more details, refer to Note 22 Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated
with assets held for sale and discontinued operations.

The company incurred a non-recurring net finance cost of (1 738)m US dollar for the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
net finance income of 882m US dollar) i see Note 11 Finance cost and income.

All the amounts referenced above are before income taxes. The non-recurring items for the year ended 31 December 2020 decreased
income taxes by 155m US dollar (31 December 2019: increase of income taxes by 6m US dollar).

Non-controlling interest on the non-recurring items amounts to 228m US dollar for the year ended 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: 108m US dollar).

9. Payroll and related benefits

Million US dollar 2020 2019
Wages and salaries (4 124) (4 563)
Social security contributions (582) (683)
Other personnel cost (637) (678)
Pension expense for defined benefit plans (218) (193)
Share-based payment expense (169) (340)
Contributions to defined contribution plans (91) (101)
Payroll and related benefits (5821) (6 558)

The number of full time equivalents can be split as follows:

2020 2019

AB InBev NV/SA (parent company) 204 204
Other subsidiaries 163 491 171711
Total number of FTE 163 695 171 915



10. Additional information on operating expenses by nature

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges are included in the following line items of the 2020 consolidated income statement:

Depreciation and
impairment of

property, plant
and equipment

Million US dollar

Cost of sales 2625
Distribution expenses 141
Sales and marketing expenses 339
Administrative expenses 310

Other operating expenses 3
Non-recurring items -
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 3418

Impairment of
Amortization and Depreciation and goodwill, tangible
impairment of impairment of and intangible

intangible assets right-of-use asset assets
91 16 -

3 108 -

291 224 -

323 125 -

- - 2733

708 473 2733

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges are included in the following line items of the 2019 restated consolidated income

statement:

Depreciation and
impairment of

property, plant
and equipment

Million US dollar

Cost of sales 2751
Distribution expenses 155
Sales and marketing expenses 379
Administrative expenses 277

Other operating expenses 8
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 3570

Impairment of
Amortization and Depreciation and goodwill, tangible
impairment of  impairment of and intangible

intangible assets right-of-use asset assets
86 11 -

4 191 -

247 160 -

290 98 -

627 460 -

The depreciation, amortization and impairment of property, plant and equipment included a full-cost reallocation of (5)m US dollar in 2020
from the aggregate depreciation, amortization and impairment expense to cost of goods sold (2019: 5m US dollar).
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11. Finance cost and income

The finance cost and income included in the income statement are as follows:

Million US dollar 2020 2019
Interest expense (4 016) (4 168)
Capitalization of borrowing costs 12 19
Net interest on net defined benefit liabilities (82) (95)
Accretion expense (564) (650)
Net losses on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship (502) (393)
Net foreign exchange results (net of the effect of foreign exchange derivative instruments) - (180)
Tax on financial transactions (103) (79)
Net mark-to-market results on derivatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs (1 211) -
Other financial costs, including bank fees (135) (225)
Finance cost excluding non-recurring items (6 601) (5771)
Non-recurring finance cost (1 818) (222)
Finance cost (8 419) (5993)
Interest income 150 292
Interest income on Brazilian tax credits 315 118
Hyperinflation monetary adjustments 76 86
Market-to-market gains on derivatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs - 898
Net foreign exchange results (net of the effect of foreign exchange derivative instruments) 43 -
Other financial income 58 21
Finance income excluding non-recurring items 642 1415
Non-recurring finance income 80 1104
Finance income 722 2519
Net finance income/(cost) excluding non-recurring items (5 959) (4 355)
Net finance income/(cost) (7 697) (3474)

Net finance costs, excluding non-recurring items, were 5 959m US dollar in 2020 compared to 4 355m US dollar in 2019. The increase
was predominantly due to a mark-to-market loss of 1 211m US dollar in 2020, compared to a gain of 898m US dollar in 2019, resulting in
a swing of 2 109m US dollar.

Borrowing costs capitalized relate to the capitalization of interest expenses directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of
qualifying assets mainly in China. Interest is capitalized at a borrowing rate ranging from 3% to 4%.

In 2020, accretion expense mainly includes interest on lease liabilities of 116m US dollar (2019: 124m US dollar), unwind of discounts of
306m US dollar (2019: 374m US dollar), bond fees of 102m US dollar (2019: 110m US dollar) and interest on provisions of 41m US dollar
(2019: 42m US dollar).

Interest expenses arepr esent ed net of the effect of interest rate deeedlsoati ve i
Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments.

In the fourth quarter of 2020, Ambev, a subsidiary of AB InBev, concluded the calculation of its tax credits on a judicial decision related to
the exclusion of the Value-Added Tax (ICMS) from the taxable basis of the social contribution on gross revenues (PIS and COFINS). The
decision refers to the period between November 2009 and April 2015. As a result of this judicial decision and other tax credit adjustments,
Ambev recognized 481m US dollar income in Other operating income (refer to Note 7 Other operating income/(expenses)) and 315m US
dollar of interest income in Finance income for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Non-recurring finance income/cost for 2020 includes:

T 1008m US dollar loss resulting from mark-to-market adjustments on derivative instruments entered into to hedge the shares
issued in relation to the combination with Grupo Modelo and the restricted shares issued in connection with the combination
with SAB (2019: 878m US dollar gain);

M 795m US dollar losses resulting from the early termination of certain bonds (2019: 84m US dollar gain);

1 15m US dollar loss write-o f f on the companyds investment in Delta Corporati
Zimbabwe (2019: 188m US dollar loss);

1  80m US dollar gain related to remeasurement of deferred considerations on prior year acquisitions (2019: 90m US dollar gain).

Besides the items mentioned above, the non-recurring finance income/cost for 2019 includes:
T 34m US dollar loss on interest paid to the State of Mato Grosso in relation to the Special Value-added Tax (ICMS) Amnesty
Program in Brazil in accordance with the Brazilian State Tax Regularization Program.
1  52m US dollar foreign exchange translation gain on intragroup loans that were historically reported in equity and were recycled
to profit and loss account upon the reimbursement of these loans.

No interest income was recognized on impaired financial assets.

The interest income stems from the following financial assets:
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Million US dollar 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 103 237
Investment debt securities held for trading 1 9
Other loans and receivables 46 46

150 292

Total
The interest income on other loans and receivables includes the interest accrued on cash deposits as guarantees for certain legal
proceedings pending resolution.

For further information on i h e dRsks arigingArém finamdiakinstusents.or ei gn e

nstruments
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12. Income taxes

Income taxes recognized in the income statement can be detailed as follows:

Million US dollar

Current year
(Underprovided)/overprovided in prior years
Current tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences
(Utilization)/recognition of deferred tax assets on tax losses
Recognition of previously unrecognized tax losses
Deferred tax (expense)/income

Total income tax expense

The reconciliation of the effective tax rate with the aggregated weighted nominal tax rate can be summarized as follows:

Million US dollar

Profit before tax
Deduct share of results of associates and joint ventures
Profit before tax and before share of results of associates and joint ventures

Adjustments to the tax basis

Government incentives

Non-deductible/(non-taxable) marked to market on derivatives
Non-deductible impairment of goodwill

Other expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Other non-taxable income

Aggregate weighted nominal tax rate
Tax at aggregated nominal tax rate

Adjustments on tax expense
Utilization of tax losses not previously recognized
Recognition of deferred taxes on previous years' tax losses

Write-down of deferred tax assets on losses and current year losses for which no deferred tax asset
is recognized

(Underprovided)/overprovided in prior years
Deductions from interest on equity
Deductions from goodwiill

Other tax deductions

Change in tax rate

Withholding taxes

Other tax adjustments

Effective tax rate

The total income tax expense for 2020 amounts to 1 932m US dollar compared to 2 786m US dollar for 2019. The effective tax rate is

100.4% for 2020 compared to 22.1% for 2019.

The 2020 effective tax rate is negatively impacted by the non-deductible, non-cash goodwill impairment loss and the non-deductible losses
from derivatives. These derivatives relate to the hedging of share-based payment programs and the hedging of the shares issued in a
transaction related to the combination with Grupo Modelo and SAB. The 2019 effective tax rate was positively impacted by non-taxable

gains from these derivatives.

The company benefits from tax exempted income and tax credits which are expected to continue in the future. The company does not

have significant benefits coming from low tax rates in any particular jurisdiction.

The normalized effective tax rate for 2020 is 30.9% (2019: 23.0%). Normalized effective tax rate is not an accounting measure under

IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an alternative to the effective tax rate.

Normalized effective tax rate method does not have a standard calcul ati on

rate may not be comparable to other companies.

2020

(2 082)
119
(1 963)

(30)

(1 932)

2020

2080
156
1924

(428)
2219
2500
1512

(250)
7477

27.7%

(2 069)

61

(423)
39
(1932)

100.4%

2019

(2 863)
58
(2 805)

(21)

(2 786)

2019

12776
152
12 624

(709)
(1776)
1223
(282)
11 080

26.2%

(2 901)

259
(95)
(505)
(191)
(2 786)

22.1%

met hod

and



Income taxes were directly recognized in other comprehensive income as follows:

Million US dollar

Re-measurements of post-employment benefits 58 19
Exchange differences, cash flow and net investment hedges 304 88
Income tax (losses)/gains 361 107
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprises owned and leased assets, as follows:

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Property, plant and equipment owned 24 191 25515
Property, plant and equipment leased (right-of-use assets) 2228 2029
Total property, plant and equipment 26 419 27 544

31 December
31 December 2020 2019

Plant and

equipment,
Land and fixtures and Under
Million US dollar buildings fittings construction

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 12 216 34 381 2 160 48 757 47 969
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (393) (1 086) (165) (1 644) (485)
Acquisitions 24 856 2 308 3188 4 451
Acquisitions through business combinations 40 56 16 111 24
Disposals (68) (1 186) (29) (1 274) (1987)
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries - - - - 4)
Transfer (to)/from other asset categories and

other m0\(/er)nentsl 9 419 1955 (2 519) (245) (1 211)
Balance at end of the period 12 237 34 976 1780 48 993 48 757
Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (3 604) (19 638) - (23 242) (22 331)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 54 570 - 625 310
Depreciation (387) (2 862) - (3 250) (3370)
Disposals 23 1108 - 1130 1734
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries - - - - 3
Impairment losses (31) (114) - (145) (87)
Transfer to/(from) other asset categories and @) 84 ) 80 499
other movements?

Balance at end of the period (3 950) (20 852) - (24 802) (23 242)
Carrying amount

at 31 December 2019 8612 14 743 2160 25515 25515
at 31 December 2020 8 287 14 124 1780 24 191 -

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment subject to restrictions on title amounted to 2m US dollar
(31 December 2019: 4m US dollar).

Contractual commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment amounted to 528m US dollar as at 31 December 2020 compared to
457m US dollar as at 31 December 2019.

AB I nBevds net capital expenditur es368%mUSlkaddaris 202a0tcempaedto4854m 0adsllar f | ow a
for the same period last year. Out of the total 2020 capital expenditures approximately 41% was used t o i mprove the com
facilities while 44% was used for logistics and commercial investments and 15% for improving administrative capabilities and for the

purchase of hardware and software.

1 The transfer (to)/from other asset categories and other movements relates mainly to transfers from assets under construction to their respective asset
categories, to contributions of assets to pension plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of property, plant and equipment held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and to the restatement of non-monetary assets under hyperinflation
accounting in line with IAS 29 Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies. Accordingly, the transfers include the balances of Australian operations
reclassified to assets held for sale as at 31 December 2019 and disposed of upon the completion of the sale on 1 June 2020.
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Property, plant and equipment leased by the company (right-of-use assets) is detailed as follows:

2020

Machinery,

Land and equipment and

Million US dollar buildings other
Net carrying amount at 31 December 1726 502 2228
Depreciation for the year ended 31 December (343) (156) (499)

2019

Machinery,

Land and equipment and

Million US dollar buildings other
Net carrying amount at 31 December 1723 306 2029
Depreciation for the year ended 31 December (329) (160) (489)

Additions to right-of-use assets for 2020 were 381m US dollar (2019: 420m US dollar).

Following the sale of Dutch and Belgian pub real estate to Cofinimmo in October 2007, AB InBev entered into lease agreements with a
term of 27 years. Furthermore, the company leases a number of warehouses, trucks, factory facilities and other commercial buildings,
which typically run for a period of five to ten years. Lease payments are increased annually to reflect market rentals, if applicable. None
of the leases include contingent rentals.

The company leases out pub real estate for an average outstanding period of 6 to 8 years and part of its own property under operating
leases.

The expense related to short-term and low-value leases and variable lease payments that are not included in the measurement of the
lease liabilities is not significant.

14. Goodwill

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 128 119 133 316
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (4 723) 53
Acquisitions through business combinations 185 682
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries - (22)
Hyperinflation monetary adjustments 120 171
Reclassified as held for sale - (6 081)
Balance at end of the period 123 702 128 119

Impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (5) (5)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (226) -
Impairment losses (2 500) -
Balance at end of the period (2 731) (5)

Carrying amount
at 31 December 2019 128 114 128 114
at 31 December 2020 120 971 -

During 2020, AB InBev recognized goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries of 185m US dollar (2019: 682m US dollar) i see also Note 6
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries.

Goodwill, which accounted for approximately 53% of AB InBev total assets as at 31 December 2020, is tested for impairment at the cash-
generating unit level (that is one level below the operating segments). The cash-generating unit level is the lowest level at which goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes. Except in cases where the initial allocation of goodwill has not been concluded by the
end of the initial reporting period following the business combination, goodwill is allocated as from the acquisition date to each of AB
| n B e v 6-generasing binits that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination whenever a business combination occurs.

Interim impairment testing

The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a sharp contraction of sales during the second quarter of 2020 in many countries in which the
company operates. The decline in performance resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic was viewed as a triggering event for impairment
testing in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. Consequently, the company conducted an impairment test during the second
quarter of 2020 for the cash-generating units showing the highest invested capital to EBITDA multiples: Colombia, Rest of Middle
Americas, South Africa, Rest of Africa and Rest of Asia Pacific.

By 30 June 2020, the uncertain course of the pandemic in the absence of effective vaccines or treatments, had caused extraordinary
economic uncertainty, including how different countries would be affected, the speed of their recovery, the financial and fiscal measures
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these countries could implement and the longer term impact on the weighted average cost of capital and terminal growth rate of these
countries.

During its interim goodwill impairment testing, the company considered several scenarios of the recovery of sales for the different cash-

generating units being tested and ran sensitivity analysis for key assumptions including the weighted average cost of capital and the
terminalgrowth r ate. These scenarios were based on managementds assumpti on
company deemed to be the most likely case at the time of the interim impairment test), a best case and a worst case scenario per cash

generating unit following the common recovery shapes: L, U and V where the letters describe the trajectory of key assumptions tracking

economic conditions. In view of the uncertainties, management assumed a 15 to 30% probability for the worst case scenario, dependent

on the cash generating units in this interim impairment testing.

Based upon the results of the interim impairment test and considering the assumptions described below, the company concluded that no
goodwill impairment was warranted under the base and best case scenarios. Nevertheless, under the worst case scenario ran with higher
discount rates to factor the heightened business risk, the company concluded that the recoverable amounts were below the carrying value
for the South Africa and Rest of Africa cash-generating units. As a consequence, management concluded, based on the valuations
performed, that it was prudent in view of the uncertainties to record an impairment of goodwill of (1.5) billion US dollar for the South Africa
cash generating unit and (1.0) billion US dollar for the Rest of Africa cash generating unit applying a 30% probability of occurrence. The
impairmentcharge was all ocated to the companyds EMEA reportable segment as

In the sensitivity analyses carried out as at 30 June 2020, based on the worst case discounted cash flow calculations, an adverse change
of 1% in the WACC applied would lead to a reduction of the recoverable amount below the carrying amount for the South Africa, Rest of
Africa, Columbia and Rest of Middle Americas cash generating units and would give rise to an additional impairment of 0.6 billion US
dollar for the South Africa and Rest of Africa cash generating units, applying a 30% probability of occurrence. The company would therefore
be faced with a risk of future impairment under the worst case scenario at these higher WACC assumptions.

A 5% increase/(decrease) in probability applied for the worst case scenario (holding all other assumptions constant) would lead to an
additional/(reduced) impairment of 0.4 billion US dollar for the South Africa and Rest of Africa cash-generating units in aggregate.

These calculations werebasedon management s assessment of reasonabl y aptoedimadobl|l e adve
the interim impairment testing, yet they are hypothetical and should not be viewed as an indication that these factors are likely to change.
The sensitivity analyses should therefore be interpreted with caution.

Annual impairment testing

The company performed a new impairment testing during the fourth quarter of 2020 for its cash-generating units and ran sensitivity

analysis for key assumptions including the weighted average cost of capital and the terminal growth rate. The impairment testing

considered a single scenario based on management 6s -gensratingmpits ancdapiedthé t he fu
assumptions described below.

Based on the annual goodwill impairment testing reperformed by management during the fourth quarter of 2020 in accordance with the
methodology discussed above, no additional impairment charge was warranted.

Impairment testing methodology
The company performed its interim and annual goodwill impairment test at cash generating unit level, which is the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

AB I nBevbds impairment testing metlmgaidmehtofdssetsiiswhichfairaaue-iess-doatioesellandli t h | AS
value in use approaches are taken into consideration. This consists in applying a discounted cash flow approach based on acquisition

valuation models for the cash-generating units showing an invested capital to EBITDA multiple above 9x and valuation multiples for the

other cash-generating units.

The key judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the discounted cash flow calculations were generally as follows:

9 In the first three years of the model, cash flows are based on AB | n B-geardpkn as approved by key management and
management assumptions for the following 2 years. The three year plan model is prepared per cash-generating unit and is
based on external sources in respect of macro-economic assumptions, industry, inflation and foreign exchange rates, past
experience and identified initiatives in terms of market share, revenue, variable and fixed cost, capital expenditure and working
capital assumptions. For the interim goodwill impairment testing, the company assumed a base case, best case and worst case
scenario for each cash-generating unit being tested and ran sensitivities. For the annual impairment testing, the company
considered a single scenario;

9 For the subsequent seven years of the model, data from each scenario was extrapolated generally using simplified assumptions
such as macro-economic and industry assumptions, variable cost per hectoliter and fixed cost linked to inflation, as obtained
from external sources;

9 cash flows after the first ten-year period are extrapolated generally using expected annual long-term GDP growth rates, based
on external sources, in order to calculate the terminal value, considering sensitivities on this metric;

9 Projections are discounted at the unit's weighted average cost of capital (WACC), considering sensitivities on this metric with
more conservative assumptions in the worst case scenario interim impairment testing to factor the heightened business risk;

9 cCostto sell is assumed to reach 2% of the entity value based on historical precedents.

For the main cash generating units, the terminal growth rate applied generally ranged between 2% and 5%.
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The WACC applied in US dollar nominal terms were as follow:

Cash-generating unit 31 December 2020 30 June 2020 31 December 2019
Colombia 6% 6% - 7% 6%
Rest of Middle Americas 9% 10% - 11% 9%
South Africa 7% 7% - 8% 7%
Rest of Africa 10% 10% - 12% 10%
Rest of Asia Pacific 6% 8% -

While a change in the weighted average cost of capital and the terminal growth rate used in impairment testing could have a material
impact on the calculation of the fair values and trigger an impairment charge, based on the sensitivity analysis performed for the fourth
quarter discounted cash flow calculations, the company is not aware of any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions that would
causethecash-gener ating unitsé carrying amount to exceed its recoverable

In the sensitivity analysis performed by management during the annual impairment testing in 2019 and 2020, an adverse change of 1%
in WACC would notcauseacash-gener ating unitédés carrying amount to exceed its reco

Goodwill impairment testing relies on a number of critical judgments, estimates and assumptions. AB InBev believes that all of its estimates

are reasonable: they are consistent with the companyo6s i mewnrnal rer
inherent uncertainties exist, including the rate of recovery of the countries following the COVID-19 pandemic, and other factors that
management may not be able to control. I f the companydés chmtesent ass.!
competitive and consumer trends, weighted average cost of capital, terminal growth rates, and other market factors, are not met, or if
valuation factors outside of the companyds control changeffected,f avor ab
leading to a potential further impairment in the future.

Although AB InBev believes that its judgments, assumptions and estimates are appropriate, actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or market or macro-economic conditions.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the different cash-generating units as follows:

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
United States 33552 33451
Rest of North America 2105 1984
Mexico 12 446 13175
Colombia 17 748 18 647
Rest of Middle Americas 24 036 25 257
Brazil 3521 4539
Rest of South America 1061 1101
Europe 2444 2277
South Africa 11110 13 500
Rest of Africa 4990 6 691
China 3291 3095
Rest of Asia Pacific 4 059 4 397
Global Export and Holding Companies 608 -
Total carrying amount of goodwill 120 971 128 114

1 with the higher WACC applied in the worst case scenario in the interim impairment testing.
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15. Intangible assets

31 December
31 December 2020 2019

Commercial
Million US dollar Brands intangibles Software

Acquisition cost
Balance at end of previous year 40 074 2774 2594 666 46 108 48 465
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (839) (6) 42 14 (789) (79)
Acquisitions through business

combinations = : ) 9 e 99
Acquisitions and expenditures 35 190 53 279 557 631
Disposals - (23) (38) (81) (142) (259)
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries - - - - - (29)
er]e;ngtfﬁ; r(tr(:])(/)f\igmeorsrselr asset categories _ 96 321 (428) a1 (2 720)
Balance at end of period 39 427 3031 2972 455 45 885 46 108
Amortization and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year (32) (1 595) (1 851) (178) (3 656) (3634)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - 12 (29) 1 (16) 41
Amortization - (297) (364) (54) (715) (622)
Impairment 9) (156) - - (165) -
Disposals - 18 B5) 9 62 254
Disposals through the sale of subsidiaries - - - - - -
Transfer to/(from) otheir asset categories _ (54) o8 158 132 305
and other movements

Balance at end of period (41) (2 072) (2 181) (64) (4 358) (3 656)
Carrying value

at 31 December 2019 40 042 1179 743 488 42 452 42 452
at 31 December 2020 39 386 959 791 391 41 527 -

During 2020, AB InBev recognized intangible assets on acquisitions of subsidiaries of 162m US dollar (2019: 128m US dollar) - see also
Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals. In addition, during 2020, the company recognized (165)m US dollar impairment on intangible sold
during 2020 and other intangibles (31 December 2019: nil) i see also Note 8 Non-recurring items.

AB I nBev is the owner of some of the worl doés most val ualtioerigliss ands

are expected to generate positive cash flows for as long as the company owns the brandsanddist r i but i on ri ght s.
than 600-year history, brands and certain distribution rights have been assigned indefinite lives.

Acquisitions and expenditures of commercial intangibles mainly represent supply and distribution rights, exclusive multi-year sponsorship
rights and other commercial intangibles.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are comprised primarily of brands and certain distribution rights that AB InBev purchased for
its own products. These were tested for impairment in the second and the fourth quarter of 2020. Based on the impairment testing results,
no impairment loss was allocated to intangible assets with indefinite useful lives i refer to Note 14 Goodwiill.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the intangible assets amounted to 41 527m US dollar (31 December 2019:
42 452m US dollar) of which 39 395m US dollar was assigned an indefinite useful life (31 December 2019: 40 217m US dollar) and
2 132m US dollar a finite life (31 December 2019: 2 235m US dollar).

1 The transfer (to)/from other asset categories and other movements mainly relates to transfers from assets under construction to their respective asset
categories, to contributions of assets to pension plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of intangible assets held for sale in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and to the restatement of non-monetary assets under hyperinflation accounting in line
with IAS 29 Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies. Accordingly, the 2019 transfers include the balances of Australian operations reclassified to
assets held for sale as at 31 December 2019 and disposed of upon the completion of the sale on 1 June 2020.
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The carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives was allocated to the cash-generating units as follows:

Million US dollar

Cash-generating unit

United States 22 172 22 124
Rest of North America 42 66
Mexico 3067 3243
Colombia 3320 3488
Rest of Middle Americas 3655 3915
Brazil 1 3
Rest of South America 681 714
Europe 461 489
South Africa 3289 3417
Rest of Africa 1068 1228
China 427 410
Rest of Asia Pacific 1212 1120
Total carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives 39 395 40 217

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives have been tested for impairment using the same methodology and assumptions as disclosed

in Note 14 Goodwill. Based on the assumptions described in that note, AB InBev concluded that no impairment charge is warranted. While

a change in the estimates used could have a material impact on the calculation of the fair values and trigger an impairment charge, the

company is not aware of any reasonably possible change in a key assumption used that would cause acash-gener at i ng uni tdés c
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

16. Investments in associates

A reconciliation of the summarized financi al informati omtestisbast he car
follows:
2020 2019
AB InBev AB InBev
Million US dollar Efes Castel Efes Efes Castel Efes
Balance at 1 January 1132 3239 451 1159 3279 479
Effect of movements in foreignh exchange - 270 (92) - (56) (59)
Dividends received - (29) - (15) (95) (11)
Share of results of associates 3 76 32 (11) 111 42
Balance at 31 December 1135 3 566 391 1133 3239 451
Summarized financi al i n Materiaesdodiaenis as followsh e company és

Million US dollar Castel Castel

Current assets 351 4048 2 156 377 4044 2 266
Non-current assets 603 3775 4 642 767 4 255 5618
Current liabilities (591) (1531) (1 639) (652) (1631) (1 859)
Non-current liabilities (75) (671) (1 852) (109) (743) (1 986)
Non-controlling interests - (687) (1 627) - (723) (1 909)
Net assets 288 4934 1679 383 5201 2130
Revenue 1276 4 879 3 847 1388 5107 4015
Profit (loss) (20) 700 224 23 719 276
Other comprehensive income (loss) - (134) 392 - (372) (431)
Total comprehensive income (loss) (20) 566 617 23 347 (155)

In 2020, associates that are not individually material contributed 45m US dollar to the results of investment in associates (2019: 10m US
dollar).

Following the entry of Zimbabwe in a hyperinflation economy in 2019, the company recorded an impairment of 15m US dollar in 2020 on
its investment in Delta Corporation Ltd (2019: 188m US dollar). The impairment is recorded as a non-recurring net finance cost. Refer to
Note 11 Finance cost and income.

Additional information related to the significant associates is presented in Note 36 AB InBev Companies.
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17. Investment securities

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Investment in unquoted companies 115 86
Investment on debt securities 22 25
Non-current investments 137 111
Investment on debt securities 396 91
Current investments 396 91

As of 31 December 2020, current debt securities of 396m US dollar mainly represented investments in government bonds (31 December
2019: 91m US dol |l ar ) . The ¢ ompany-fesn debhsearitiesrare primarily torfacilgate diduidity &nd fort capital
preservation.

18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities by type of temporary difference can be detailed as follows:

2020

Million US dollar Assets Liabilities Net
Property, plant and equipment 398 (2 487) (2 089)
Intangible assets 106 (10 007) (9 901)
Inventories 86 (65) 22
Trade and other receivables 62 - 62
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 858 (603) 255
Employee benefits 648 (8) 640
Provisions 525 (30) 495
Derivatives 13 (46) (33)
Other items 312 (1 152) (840)
Loss carry forwards 782 - 782
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3790 (14 398) (10 607)
Netting by taxable entity (1771) 1771 -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 2019 (12 627) (10 607)
2019
Million US dollar Assets Liabilities Net
Property, plant and equipment 415 (2 550) (2 135)
Intangible assets 112 (10 327) (10 215)
Inventories 119 (67) 52
Trade and other receivables 52 (1) 51
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 706 (603) 103
Employee benefits 631 3) 628
Provisions 467 (22) 445
Derivatives 23 (21) 2
Other items 311 (861) (550)
Loss carry forwards 515 - 515
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3 350 (14 455) (11 105)
Netting by taxable entity (1631) 1631 -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 1719 (12 824) (11 105)



The change in net deferred taxes recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position can be detailed as follows:

Million US dollar

Balance at 1 January (11 105) (11 648)
Recognized in profit or loss 32 19
Recognized in other comprehensive income 361 109
Acquisitions through business combinations (6) (18)
Reclassified as held for sale (2) 363
Other movements and effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 112 70
Balance at 31 December (10 607) (11 105)

Most of the temporary differences are related to the fair value adjustment on intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and property,
plant and equipment acquired through business combinations. The realization of such temporary differences is unlikely to revert within 12
months. The net deferred tax liabilities attributable to the US business amounted to 6.6 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2020.

Tax losses carried forward and deductible temporary differences on which no deferred tax asset is recognized amount to 3 464m US
dollar in 2020 (2019: 4 734m US dollar). 1 082m US dollar of these tax losses and deductible temporary differences do not have an
expiration date, 303m US dollar, 221m US dollar and 239m US dollar expire within respectively 1, 2 and 3 years, while 1 618m US dollar
have an expiration date of more than 3 years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized on these items because it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which these tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be utilized and the
company has no tax planning strategy currently in place to utilize these tax losses and deductible temporary differences.

19. Inventories

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Prepayments 92 105
Raw materials and consumables 2 499 2478
Work in progress 439 405
Finished goods 1256 1257
Goods purchased for resale 197 182
Inventories 4 482 4 427

Inventories other than work in progress
Inventories stated at net realizable value 214 171

The cost of inventories recognized as an expense in 2020 amounts to 19 634m US dollar, included in cost of sales (2019: 20 362m US
dollar).

Impairment losses on inventories recognized in 2020 amount to 117m US dollar. The impairment loss includes the write off of obsolete
work in progress and finished goods as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic (2019: 59m US dollar).
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20. Trade and other receivables

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Cash deposits for guarantees 184 219
Loans to customers 25 58
Tax receivable, other than income tax 99 96
Brazilian tax credits and interest receivables 997 70
Trade and other receivables 357 363
Non-current trade and other receivables 1661 807
Trade receivables and accrued income 3284 4046
Interest receivables 4 21
Tax receivable, other than income tax 552 821
Loans to customers 117 119
Prepaid expenses 354 563
Other receivables 522 616
Current trade and other receivables 4 833 6 187
Ambevds tax credits and interest receivables are expectedsheed be col

date. As of 31 December 2020, the total amount of such credits and interest receivables represented 997m US dollar (31 December 2019:
70m US dollar). Refer to Note 7 Other operating income/(expenses) and Note 11 Finance cost and income for more details.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is a good approximation of their fair value as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The ageing of the current trade receivables and accrued income, interest receivable, other receivables and current and non-current loans
to customers can be detailed as follows for 2020 and 2019 respectively:

Of which: Of which not impaired as of the reporting
neither date and past due
Net carrying impaired nor

amount as of past due on
31 December the reporting Less than 30 30 Between Between 60 More than 90
2020 date days and 59 days and 89 days days

Trade receivables and

accrued income 3285 3074 155 37 10 8
Loans to customers 142 86 3 2 50 -
Interest receivable 4 4 - - - -
Other receivables 522 416 2 16 5 83

3953 3580 161 55 66 91

Of which: Of which not impaired as of the reporting
neither date and past due

Net carrying impaired nor

amount as of past due on
31 December  the reporting Less than 30 30 Between Between 60 More than 90
2019 date EVS and 59 days and 89 days EVES

Trade receivables and

accrued income 4046 3690 261 44 44 7
Loans to customers 177 172 1 2 2 -
Interest receivable 21 21 - - - -
Other receivables 616 582 9 16 5 4

4 860 4 465 271 62 51 11

The above analysis of the age of financial assets that are past due as at the reporting date but not impaired also includes non-current

loans to customers. Past due amounts were not impaired when collection is still considered likely, for instance because the amounts can

be recovered from the tax authorities, AB InBev has sufficient collateral, or the customer entered into a payment plan. Impairment losses

on trade and other receivables recognized in 2020 amount to 99m US dollar (2019: 51m US dollar). The impairment loss recognized in

2020i ncl udes AB I nBevds estimate of overdue receivables the submpany \
of the COVID-19 pandemic.

ABl nBevds exposure to credit, curr eNote39 Risks drisingframefinaaciatinstruments. r i sks i s di
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21. Cash and cash equivalents and investment securities

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Short-term bank deposits 3319 2236
Treasury Bills 6 800 -
Cash and bank accounts 5132 5002
Cash and cash equivalents 15 252 7238
Bank overdrafts 5) (68)

15 247 7169

The company's investment in Treasury Bills is to facilitate liquidity and for capital preservation.

The cash outstanding as at 31 December 2020 includes restricted cash for an amount of 84m US dollar (31 December 2019: 78m US
dollar). This restricted cash relates to an outstanding consideration payable to former Anheuser-Busch shareholders that have not yet
claimed the proceeds from the 2008 combination (1m US dollar) and amounts deposited on a blocked account in respect to the state aid
investigation into the Belgian excess profit ruling system (83m US dollar).

22. Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Balance at the end of previous year 10 013 39
Reclassified to assets held for sale in the period 210 9 692
Disposals (9 665) (59)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (484) 341
Balance at the end of year 74 10 013

LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Million US dollar 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Balance at end of previous year 1145 -
Reclassified to liabilities associated with assets held for sale (46) 1106
Disposals (1 044) -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (55) 39
Balance at end of the period - 1145

On 19 July 2019, AB InBev announced the agreement to divest CUB, its Australian subsidiary, to Asahi for 16.0 billion AUD on a cash

free, debt free basis. Consequently, in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, as at 31

December 2019, assets and liabilities associated with the Australian operations were reclassified to assets held for sale and liabilities

associated with assets held for sale. Furthermore, the results of the Australian operations were accounted for as discontinued operations

and presentedinasepar ate | ine in the condensed consolidated intedo) mupntom8ls
May 2020.

Upon the closing of the transaction on 1 June 2020, the company received 10.8 billion US dollar proceeds net of disposal costs,
derecognized (8.5) billion US dollar of net assets in relation to its former Australian operations, recycled (0.4) billion US dollar of the
cumulative foreign exchange differences on its former Australian operations and cashflow hedges from equity to profit or loss, resulting in
a net gain on disposal of 1.9 billion US dollar recognized in discontinued operations.



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

Assets and liabilities relating to the Australian operations were classified as held for sale on the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019 and disposed of upon the completion of the sale on 1 June 2020. The relevant assets and liabilities are detailed
in the table below:

Million US dollar 1 June 2020 31 December 2019
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 581 625
Goodwill and intangible assets 8 584 9030
Other assets 371 310
Assets classified as held for sale 9 537 9 965
Liabilities

Trade and other payables (581) (659)
Deferred tax liabilities (363) (380)
Other liabilities (101) (106)
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale (1 044) (1 145)
Net assets disposed of 8 493 -
Gain on divestiture of Australia (discontinued operations - non-recurring) 1919 -
Recycling of CTA and cashflow hedges 426 -
Consideration received 10 838 -

RESULTS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes the results of the Australian operations included in the consolidated income statements and presented as
discontinued operations:

For the period ended

Million US dollar 31 May 2020 31 December 2019
Revenue 477 1394
Profit from operations 178 632
Profit from discontinued operations 136 424

CASH FLOW FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Cash flows attributable to the operating, investing and financing activities of the Australian operations are summarized as follows:*

For the period ended

Million US dollar 31 May 2020 31 December 2019
Cash flow from operating activities 84 640
Cash flow from investing activities i proceeds from Australia divestiture 10 838 219
Cash flow from investing activities i other (13) (77)
Cash flow from financing activities (6) (24)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10 903 758

23. Changes in equity and earnings per share

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL
The tables below summarize the changes in issued capital and treasury shares during 2020:

Issued capital

Issued capital Million shares Million US dollar
At the end of the previous year 2019 1736
Changes during the period - -
2019 1736
Of which:
Ordinary shares 1693
Restricted shares 326

1 The 2019 cash flow from investing activities has been restated to reflect reclassification of the cash flow hedges in relation to the Australia divestiture
reported in the financing activities in 2019 and recycled to profit or loss upon the completion of the transaction.
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Result on the use of

Treasury shares treasury shares

Treasury shares Million shares Million US dollar Million US dollar
At the end of the previous year 59.9 (6 270) (2 556)
Changes during the period (12.9) 1359 (974)
47.0 (4 911) (3 530)

As at 31 December 2020, the share capital of AB InBev amounts to 1 238 608 344.12 euro (1 736 million US dollar). It is represented by
2 019 241 973 shares without nominal value, of which 46 992 567 are held in treasury by AB InBev and its subsidiaries. All shares are
ordinary shares, except for 325 999 817 restricted shares. As at 31 December 2020, the total of authorized, unissued capital amounts to
37m euro.

The treasury shares held by the company are reported in equity in Treasury shares.

The holders of ordinary and restricted shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote

per share at meetings of the company. | n r es panditssubdidiarted the ecamomcany 6 s s

and voting rights are suspended.

The restricted shares are unlisted, not admitted to trading on any stock exchange, and are subject to, among other things, restrictions on
transfer until converted into new ordinary shares. The restricted shares will be convertible at the election of the holder into new ordinary
shares on a one-for-one basis with effect from the fifth anniversary of completion of the SAB combination (i.e. as from 11 October 2021).
From completion of the SAB combination, such restricted shares will rank equally with the ordinary shares with respect to dividends and
voting rights.

The shareholdersé structure is based on the notificationbgovemsie to th

the disclosure of significant shareholdings in listed companies. It is included in the Corporate Governance section of AB1 n Bev 6 s
report.

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS

In compliance with IFRS 10, the acquisition or disposal of additional shares in a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction with
owners.

On 31 December 2020, AB InBev completed the issuance of a 49.9% minority stake in its US-based metal container operations to Apollo
Global Management, Inc. for the net proceeds of 3.0 billion USD. This transaction allowed the company to create additional shareholder
value by optimizing its business at an attractive price and generate proceeds to repay debt, in line with its deleveraging commitments. AB
InBev retained operational control of its US-based metal container operations.

As required by IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, the transaction was reported in the equity statement resulting in recognition
of 1.9 hillion US dollar in Non-controlling interest and 1.1 billion US dollar in Reserves.

annual

On 30 September 2019, t he i ni tminarity stake ip Budweises Bréwéng Camgany( APACeLimiteld,P ABO ) of a

InBev’'s Asia Pacific subsidiary, was completed and Budweiser APAC commenced the listing of its shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. In addition, on 3 October 2019, the over-allotment option in connection with the IPO of Budweiser APAC was fully exercised
by the international underwriters.

The final number of shares issued in the IPO was 1 669 459 000 shares comprising of 72 586 000 shares issued under the Hong Kong
public offering, 1 379 118 000 shares placed under the international offering, and 217 755 000 shares issued under the over-allotment
option fully exercised by the international underwriters.

Following the completion of the IPO and after the exercise of the over-allotment option, AB InBev retained an 87.22% controlling interest
of the issued share capital of Budweiser APAC. As presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the transaction resulted
in a 4.4 billion US dollar increase in equity and a 1.2 billion US dollar increase in non-controlling interest representing 12.78% of the net
assets of Budweiser APAC.

The net proceeds of the offering (after deducting the underwriting commissions and other expenses in connection with the IPO and the
issuance of the new shares) amount to 5.6 billion US dollar and were used to repay debt of AB InBev.

During 2020, there were no significant purchases of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF OWN SHARES (REPORT ACCORDING TO ARTICLE 7:220 OF THE
BELGIAN COMPANIES CODE OF COMPANIES AND ASSOCIATIONS) AND BORROWINGS OF OWN SHAREST
PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

During 2020, the company has not acquired any treasury shares in accordance with article 7:215 of the Belgian Code of Companies and
Associations (former article 620 of the Belgian Companies Code) and has proceeded with the following disposals of its own shares.

Treasury shares

The company has used 9 520 966 treasury sharestos et t | e t he participantsd obligati o8l
Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, loans to customers and other for more
details). As a result, as at 31 December 2020, the group owned 46 992 567 own shares of which 38 779 160 were held directly by AB
InBev. The par value of the share is 0.61 euro. As a consequence, the treasury shares used to settle the obligations during 2020
represented 7 126 734 US dollar (5 807 966 euro) of the subscribed capital and the shares that the company still owned at the end of
2020 represented 35 175 372 US dollar (28 665 466 euro) of the subscribed capital.
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